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2019 Highlights of the Year

ICTA was honored with two awards at the SLT Zero
One Awards, which reward excellence in Digital
Technology Initiatives across the island. ICTA
emerged as the Overall Winner in the Best Digital
Product/Service Category and Winner in the Best
Digital — Enabled Product/Service category for
Government Institutions and NGOs.

ICTA Chairman cum LIRNEasia founding Chair
Prof. Rohan Samarajiva received the SLT Zero
One Lifetime Achievement Award. The award
presentation was in recognition of the yeoman
contribution he has made as a public policy maker
and advocate to influence access to cost-effective
and high-quality digital infrastructure for all Sri
Lankans.

Professor Rohan Samarajiva Receives
Lifetime Achievement Award

The Colombo Digital Public Library was officially
launched by Hon. Ajith P. Perera, Minister of Digital
Infrastructure and Information Technology, along
with the Mayor of Colombo, Her Worship Rosy
Senanayake on 14th of March, 2019, at the public
library premises. The library is now open to the
public as the first model digital library under the
Digital Libraries Project, to experience library
services with technological advancements.

ICTA g LankaClear

ideas actioned

ICTA and LankaClear Ltd. (LCPL) signed a ground-
breaking agreement providing convenience for Sri
Lankan citizens when making online payments for
Government Services. Two existing systems will
be integrated to enable citizens to make online
payments utilizing their current and savings
accounts (CASA).

T?ACT THE FUTURE

Y

ICTA and LankaClear Ltd. (LCPL) Inks
Agreement
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ICTA initiated the 'IT-BPM Workforce Survey 2019'.
It's findings revealed that, Sri Lanka's ICT sector
had the potential to uplift the national economy by
attracting investment, earning foreign exchange,
creating employment, increasing productivity,
and promoting innovation. In addition, The overall
survey highlighted a vast improvement in the
ICT workforce and expansion of the female ICT
workforce, which augurs well for the future of the
ICT sector.

IT-BPM Workforce Survey 2019

The Third National Public-Private Dialogue on
e-commerce Reforms in Sri Lanka

The Digital Infrastructure and Information Technology Ministry, along with ICTA and Sri Lanka CERT, assisted
in realizing thrust areas relating for e-commerce through a series of activities. The Third National Public-
Private Dialogue on e-commerce Reforms in Sri Lanka, was organized by the Ministry of Digital Infrastructure
and Information Technology, and the International Trade Centre in Colombo. The introduction of policies,
strategies, regulations, and human resource capacity development activities were discussed while ensuring
provisions of required digital infrastructure.

Supporting Sri Lanka’s Journey Towards
Digitalization

The 2019 National CXO Forum was organized by the Federation of Information Technology Industry Sri Lanka
(FITIS). Itwas a focal point in helping Sri Lanka expedite the eGovernment and eCitizen service implementation.
During the eGovernment and eCitizen session at the forum, four tech wizards came together to support fast-
track efforts in Sri Lankas' journey towards reaching global digital standards.
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Who we are?

a Company on 12th May 2003, fully owned by the Treasury. The Information and Communication
Technology (“ICT") Act No. 27 of 2003, empowered ICTA with statutory powers and its mandate was
further enhanced through ICT (Amendment) Act No. 33 of 2008.

The Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Lanka (ICTA) was established as

Since its inception, ICTA has been at the forefront of implementing digital strategies, working with multiple
stakeholders in government, private sector and the civil society as well as other development partners. ICTA
has also made significant contribution by establishing the Lanka Government Information Infrastructure
(LGIl) to manage Lanka Government Network (LGN) since 2011, deployed South Asia's first Government
cloud, the Lanka Government Cloud (LGC) since 2013, Drafted several ICT related laws and policies based
on International standards, deployed transformational e-Services and gave leadership to digitalization of
vital sectors of the economy. ICTA also took the lead to enrich the ICT industry, by the establishment of
SLASSCOM and formulated strategies to achieve export revenue target of over USD 1 billion for this sector.

Vision
‘A better life for people.’

A better life for people by transforming Sri Lanka into a sustainable country that is prosperous, knowledge-
based and inclusive by 2025

Strategic Direction

Vision >

National Digital Policy

Pillars/ Thrusts >

Innovative Economy Effective Government
Digital innovation and business Empowered and involved citizens
solutions inclusive processes

User-centric public service delivery
Digital

> Potential
Enablers

Connectivity: Digital and network infrastructure
Fiberisation, network coverage on 4G/LTE, 5G and beyond

Future

Smart Society: Digital skills

proofing digital
solutions Skills development and digital interacy; digital culture and society

Trust: Data protection and cybersecurity

Ethical and safe online behavior, data protection, cybersecurity, resillience

Sustained Implementation: Leadership

Reforming and inventing laws, regulations and processes

The proposed National Digital Policy outlines Sri Lanka's digital plan for 2020 to 2025. The Policy provides
the high-level principles and conceptual framework for Sri Lanka to achieve sustained digital economic
development and growth by creating an Innovative Economy, and an Effective Government, as depicted below.
The thrusts that will help achieve the organisation's visions are two-fold; fostering an Innovative Economy
and Building an Effective Government.




The proposed National Digital Policy outlines Sri Lanka's digital plan for 2020 to 2025. The Policy provides
the high-level principles and conceptual framework for Sri Lanka to achieve sustained digital economic
development and growth by creating an Innovative Economy, and an Effective Government, as depicted below.
The thrusts that will help achieve the organisation's visions are two-fold; fostering an Innovative Economy
and Building an Effective Government.

Innovative Economy: Businesses must embrace digital solutions to adapt, disrupt and remain competitive,
creating a broad base of opportunities and driving sustainable economic growth across Sri Lanka. Digitization
of the private sector including large companies, small and medium enterprises (SMEs), and start-ups, will be
key to achieving Sri Lanka's digital vision. In addition, digitally connecting these firms to global value chains
and production networks will be integral to Sri Lanka's success.

Effective Government: Digital solutions will enable better communication between citizens and government
agencies to uphold democratic values. Similarly, these solutions may be harnessed to improve the quality
of government service delivery through integrated and efficient processes, reduce bureaucracy, and improve
accountability and transparency. A series of strategic national initiatives are to be established under this
pillar to enhance digital identification (digital ID), fintech, health tech, and other similar government-wide
services.

Furthermore, access to trusted and resilient digital infrastructure, a smart and digitally literate society, the
sustained implementation of laws and regulatory reforms, and the study of emerging digital trends and
developments would act as enablers of achieving the overall strategic direction.




he year 2019
has been an
eventful year
for the Information
and Communication
Technology Agency
(ICTA). In the macro
environment, it was a

turbulent year, politically,
sociallyand economically.

Mid-year, we encountered
the Easter bomb attacks, in which a total of 269
innocent lives were lost, including those of 45 foreign
nationals and three police officers. Economically, the
tourist industry, which had seeing healthy growth, to
become one of the key foreign income earners, came
to a standstill. Despite these obstacles, ICTA has
been committed to making its contribution to the
nation, as always.

During the vyear, we heard many authorities
emphasizing the need to focus on information
security aspects of the development of the nation.
Attorney General Jayantha Jayasuriya PC, after
inaugurating the 11th National Cyber Security Week
2019 organized by SL-CERT and ICTA at the Hilton
Colombo, said,that successfully facing the growing
cybersecurity challenge is key to safeguarding
socioeconomic prosperity in the country.

There are certain challenges countries and
organizations, he said, would have to face when
mitigating cyber threats. Some of them are lack of
awareness of cyber threats among citizens, lack
of readiness of stakeholders to deal with it, gaps
in laws in relation to modern cybercrimes, lack
of cooperation among relevant stakeholders and
countries. | am proud to say the ICTA, with its sister
organization SL-CERT has been working hard to
achieve these objectives in the context of the entire
country facing a security threat in the virtual space.

Over the year, ICTA has been continuing multiple
initiatives to bring the benefits of ICTs to citizens,
especially those are rural, poor and less privileged.
They include Smart Social Circles program, the
successor to the popular Nenasala initiative, which
so far has trained over 8,600 knowledge agents on

the use of social media for business purposes.

The implementation of e Health in over 40
Government Hospitals has created over 3.5 million
e Health Records; the 1919 Government Information
Centre which provides government information in all
three languages; e-Swabhimani, which recognizes
excellence in digital content creation; and Suhuruliya,
which has provided entrepreneurial training to over
300 rural women and many more with awareness.

Continuing its e-government initiative, e-government
solutions have been implemented for government
institutions such as the Ministry of Foreign Affairs,
Department of Immigration and Emigration,
Registrar General's Department, Ministry of Lands
and Registrar of Companies. Regulations have been
approved to make it possible to issue SLIN numbers
along with birth certificates, laying the foundation for
rationalizing identity procedures.

ICTA has also facilitated the training of public officers
as change agents. Hundreds of CIOs were trained.
The recently completed Government E Learning
Platform (GELP) enables the Sri Lanka Institute of
Development Administration (SLIDA) as well as other
organizations to deliver course content outside the
conventional classroom. SLIDA has introduced ICTA
designed courses as part of its induction programs.

ICTA supported the formulation of Digital Economic
Strategies (DES), which were disrupted by the
Constitutional Crisis in 2018, and continues to
work with relevant Ministries on shaping their
detailed digital initiatives. Key actions such as the
development of data protection legislation and
modernizing export procedures to enable fulfilment
of e commerce orders from Sri Lanka prioritized
under DES have been completed.

Among ICTA's industry development initiatives so far
implemented are ‘Spiralation’, a tech startup program
which has incubated 70 startups, 'Disrupt Asia'
which has for four years been the biggest community
gathering of the ecosystem, 'ImaginelF' startup boot
camps for more than 1,400 undergraduates, '‘Educate
to Innovate' workshops on creative STEAM education
for 3,300 teachers, ‘Sri Lanka Go Digital’ workshops
for 750 SMEs to adopt digital for business activities,
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career guidance on IT and BPM for 1,900 teachers
and students, business development in Australia
since 2011 benefiting 80 exporters,

‘LEAP' workshops for 25 IT SMEs to accelerate
export readiness, 'ICT Workforce Survey', the most
comprehensive publication on the ICT workforce
in Sri Lanka, '‘Quality Coder' to instill quality coding
practices among developers. Other national
Initiatives supported include National Export
Strategy, 'Hackadev' social innovation challenge,
Techstars startup weekends, Diversity Collective,
Women's Chamber for Digital, etc.

Focused interventions of ICTA on critical government
processes, such as construction permits and
land parcel fabric, which impact the Ease of Doing
Business Index, have resulted in Sri Lanka advancing
in rank in the Index which has direct implications
for the attraction of foreign investment and also in
making local businesses more competitive.

In the face of challenges posed by social media and
cyber threats, experts at ICTA served as resources
to Parliamentary Oversight Committees, Ministries
and task forces. We have advised different levels
of government on novel issues such as smart city
proposals. We have worked to improve understanding
of what government needs to do regarding emerging
platforms, e commerce, etc.

ICTA is proactively transforming itself to respond
to evolving demands of government, industry and
society. Led by independent, qualified professionals
serving on the Board since April 2018 and
transparently selected qualified professionals as
senior management, ICTA will adopt results-based
management and reward high-quality professionals
based on performance. Anchored on a block
grant that will support approved priority projects,
ICTA will work with government organizations to
collaboratively implement effective digital solutions.

The need for restructuring ICTA has been proposed
at various levels during the recent past due to the
challenges faced by the Agency in meeting ever-
growing demand from the stakeholders and the
rapid development of technologies, which led to
the Agency to revisit its operational model toward
a "knowledge organization" as the government's
digital technology arm, rather than limiting its role
into a project executing entity.

The line Ministry advocated the requirement for
opting a project facilitation role rather than claiming
project ownership which has resulted unnecessary
operational and managerial burden on ICTA. ICTA's
scope has been categorized under two broad themes
namely THINK and EXECUTE in order to deliver results
as mandated. Accordingly, core functions have been
identified under both themes during the restructuring
process. The overall objective is social and economic
transformation, not simply keeping ICTA functioning.

The National Digital Policy (NDP), ICTA prepared and
awaiting approval by Cabinet outlines Sri Lanka's
digital agenda for 2020 to 2025. NDP provides the
high-level principles and conceptual framework
for Sri Lanka to achieve sustained socio-economic
development and growth, through the creation of an
Innovative Economy and an Effective Government.
Under this overarching framework sector strategies
are currently being formulated.

| hope in future too ICTA will serve as a trusted source
of expertise on ICTs and relevant legal and policy
aspects. It will drive national digital transformation
agenda consistent with the National Digital Policy. |
take this opportunity to thank the political leadership,
Ministry officials, my colleagues on ICTA's Board of
Directors, and the ICTA team who contributed to
make our goals a reality.

Prof. Rohan Samarajiva.
Chairman
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The Board of Directors of ICTA has always provided essential high-level direction to
the organization, which is the principal state agency that drives the nation's digital
transformation. ICTA's Directors are always competent and experienced individuals
carefully chosen from diverse fields. They may come from four different streams based on
a pre-defined criteria.

Among ICTA's Board Directors are senior academics of high repute with over 25 years of
experience backed by extensive research or academic publications inlocal and international
journals. If they come from the private sector, they must have knowledge of over 20 years
in senior management or leadership positions in recognized private sector establishments.
They may have served as Chairman/ Chief Executive Officer/ Chief Operating Officer/
General Manager or Director with post-graduate or equivalent professional qualifications.

ICTA's Board Directors may also be from the Professional category — i.e. professionals of
high reputation with over 20 years of experience. In addition, they may be those who have
served in leadership positions with expertise in the field of Information technology and
associated fields backed by postgraduate and/or equivalent professional qualifications in
the area of Finance/ Law/ Technology or other areas.

The final category is Public Service, where ICTA includes, in its Board of Directors, senior
officials of high reputation from the public service with over 25-30 years of experience
with postgraduate or equivalent professional qualifications. For example, having served or
presently serving as a Secretary to a Ministry, Deputy Secretary to the Treasury, Additional
Secretary or Director General or Head of Department.

Directors Holding Office in ICTA as at 31st December 2019

Name Directorship Status
Prof. Rohan Samarajiva Chairman

Kapila Sri Chandrasekera Non-executive
Reshan Dewapura Non-executive
Dilani Alagaratnam Non-executive
Ananda Wijayarathna Non-executive
Lakmini Wijesundera Non-executive

Directors Holding Office in LGIl as at 31st December 2019

Name Directorship Status
Prof. Rohan Samarajiva Chairman

Damith Thilanka Hettihewa Non-executive
Reshan Dewapura Non-executive
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New Appointments and Resignations of ICTA from 1st January 2019 to
31st December 2019

Prof. Rohan Samarajiva - 4th December 2019

Kapila Sri Chandrasekera - 4th December 2019

Reshan Dewapura - -

4th December 2019

Dilani Alagaratnam -

Lakmini Wijesundara - 2nd December 2019

Ananda Wijayarathna - -
M. C. L. Rodrigo - 26th August 2019
Lal Dias - 27th February 2019

D. S. P. K. Karunasekera

27th February 2019

20th November 2019

M. S. Thilakawardana

27th February 2019

21st November 2019

Hiran A. Karunaratne

27th February 2019

20th November 2019

Jayantha De Silva 21st December 2019 -

Mano Sekaram 21st December 2019 -

21st December 2019 -
21st December 2019 -

Sanjiva Weerawarana

Manori Unambuwa

Wasantha Deshapriya 21st December 2019 -

Prof. Lalith Gamage 21st December 2019 -

New Appointments and Resignations of LGIlI from 1st January 2019 to 31st
December 2019

Kiri Banda Nimal Ratnayake - 10 April 2019
Reshan Dewapura 23 May 2019 -
Don Sujeewa Prasanna Kumar Karunasekara 23 May 2019 20 November 2019

Prof. Rohan Samarajiva - -

Damith Thilanka Hettihewa - -

Details of Director’s Attendance at Directors’ Meetings of LGIl from 1st
January 2019 to 31st December 2019

Kiri Banda Nimal Ratnayake -

Reshan Dewapura -

Don Sujeewa Prasanna Kumar Karunasekara 01/01
Prof. Rohan Samarajiva 01/01
Damith Thilanka Hettihewa 01/01
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Human Capital

At ICTA, the most valuable asset we have is our Human Capital. They are the prime force that drives the
nation's digital transformation. ICTA, as the apex agency responsible for the country's digital transformation,
has to be the prime digital knowledge hub of the country.

Hence, it is crucial to employ the best talent specialized in Social and Economic development, Technology
Conceptualization, Program Management, Policy, and Legal expertise for the organization success.

We have a strong team of 86 diverse human resources working towards making a digital inclusive prosperous
Sri Lanka. Recruiting and retaining the best talent is a crucial challenge to ICTA. The employee retention rate
for 2019 is 95 percent. We are currently looking at different approaches to enhance employer attractiveness

to bring in the best talent in the industry.

Diversity and Inclusion
Weenvisageourculturetobeinclusive, promoting gender balance whilerespecting allemployees' contributions

regardless of gender, age, race, disability, or sexual orientation. To inculcate diversity and inclusion, we are
committed to maintaining a workplace free from physical or verbal harassment or discrimination based on

race, religion, gender, age, nationality, social origin, disability, sexual orientation, or family status.

Human Resource Composition

Organization Headcount - 2019 Gender Analysis

® Female
® Male

@ LGl
@ ICTA

Divisional Headcount - 2019

13%
® CEO's Office Policy ® HR
o ® Legal Procument @ Internal Audit
4% ® Technology M&E ® Project Management
Office
® Transformation ® Finance & Admin




Performance for the year 2019

As illustrated below, all ICTA projects are aligned along its three main focus areas: Government, Citizen, and

Business.

Core eGov
Infrastructure

« Lanka Government
Network 2.0

« Cloud 2.0 Phase -2 -
Second zone of LGC 2.0

* LGN 2.0 Connecting
Adjoining Buildings,
Training and Change
Management and
Awareness
(LGN 2.0 Enhancement
Phase)

* Lanka Government Cloud

Cross Government Solutions

and Platforms

Cross Government Digital
Work Flow

Video Conference
facilities for Govt Orgs

National spatial Data
Infrastructure (NSDI) -
Phase Il

Window for Cross
Government (Cluster
implementation)
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Digital Government - Core eGov Infrastructure

Lanka Government Network
2.0

Eight hundred fifty-five sites
(out of 860 planned sites) have
been successfully deployed and
are currently functioning.

LGN connectivity and end sites
Wi-Fi access are provided

for all completed 855 sites
government organizations.

Completing Implementation
of a Ticketing System for LGN
Helpdesk.

To build a highly available,
high-speed, secure, reliable, and
centrally managed government
network to link government
institutions to a single digital
infrastructure.

Lanka Government Cloud
(LGC) 2.0 - Phase 1
(LGC2.0 Phase 1
Maintenance +LGC 1.0
maintenance)

LGC 2.0 has been live since
August 2018. The connectivity
(Link) between the LGN 2.0

and LGC 2.0 was established in
August 2018. Upon completion,
now we provide servers on
both infrastructure as a service
(laas) and platform as a service
(Paas). The application is
hosted in LGC 1.0 migrated to
LGC 2.0 is ongoing.

84 applications and 30 websites
hosted in LGC 2.0.

80% of work has been
completed on carrying out an
audit on cloud standards and
security compliance of LGC 2.0.

Implement a fully-fledged
-standard cloud environment
to facilitate the government's
current and emerging server
requirements.

Digital Government - Cross Government Solutions and Platforms

22

Implementation of Gov.

Ik "Single Window" for
Cross Government (Cluster
implementation)

Project is in the initial stage of
implementation.

At present, managing of key
components of middleware
infrastructure (including Lanka
Gate, Gov.lk country portal, and
Lanka Government Payment
Service and Government SMS
solution) is in progress.

To identify separate
service clusters within the
government services.

Implement all essential
services associated as a
Single Window across the
government.




27 Implementation of Cross | The system mainly manages employees' | Implement a secure,
Government Digital personal files of relevant ministries and | efficient, and reliable
Document Management departments. Cross Government
System Digital Document

System study and UAT has been Management System
completed for 16 organizations which for selected government
are as follows. organizations.

-The Ministry of Skills Development and

Vocational Training.

-The Ministry of Ports and Shipping.

-The Department of Rubber

Development.

-8 Zonal Education Offices in Gampaha

and Colombo.

-The Ministry of Education

-The Department of Education Western

Province.

Deployment of the system for 11

organizations has been completed.

39 National Spatial Data The Web-Based Spatial Data Develop a single
Infrastructure (NSDI) - Management System has been platform to share
Phase Il completed and is fully functional. Spatial Data for effective

decision-making for
The majority of activities associated the Government sector,
with Spatial Data Policies and Legal private sector, and
Framework are completed, including general public.
NSDI policy and draft NSDI bill.
The digitalization and data uploading
facility are completed, and over 125 data
layers have already been uploaded in the
system.
20 Lanka Gate Infrastructure | Support and Maintenance of Lanka To deliver uninterrupted,

maintenance/related
services and related
components

Government Payment Service and Online
Payment Reconciliation Software have
been carried out.

The rollout of the eRevenue License
solution into all the provinces in the
country have been completed (in all the
Divisional Secretariats and provincial
head offices), enabling Citizens to obtain
revenue license online for vehicles
registered in any province.

smooth and secure
government services

to citizens through
eServices which are
offered through the
Government Web Portal.
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NPD | Project Achievement Goals of the project
No
Digital Government - eGov Solutions

12 Employee Trust Fund ETF Process Improvement Study was | To digitalize core functions
Management (ETF) completed. of the ETFB to provide
System efficient and effective

Following the completion of the services to stakeholders.
Process Improvement Study, business

process improvement verification was

conducted and completed.

Preparation of System Requirement

Specification is in the signing off stage.

30 ICT Solution for the 75% of the system implementation To improve the Government
Government Analyst activities have been completed. Analysis Department (GAD)
Department (GAD) process more efficiently and

effectively by establishing
digital solution benefiting
both internal and external
stakeholders of GAD.

43 Web Development 356 websites have been completed To upgrade the existing
Initiative and launched at Districts and government websites.

Divisional Secretariat Offices.
Develop new government
222 Govt ICT officers (web champions) | websites for more
trained at 8 user trainings on website | interaction with citizens.
content management.
Offer services online in a
72 Governmenment ICT secure manner.
officerstrained on web site content
management from 24 organizations
(via 24 workshops).
Provided one-year support and
maintenance service through the
vendor.
63 eParliament Iteration | of the Document Establish an Electronic
Management System was released. Document Management
System (EDMS) for the
A change management workshop parliament to enhance
and awareness workshop, and three efficiency and effectiveness
requirement verification workshops of the core functions
were conducted for parliamentary through managing
officials. information in connection
with the entire process.
80 Software Solution The system Requirement Specification | Develop a comprehensive

for Plantation Sector
(Manage Census
Data,Ministry of

Hill Country New
Villages, Infrastructure
and Community
Development)

(SRS) has been finalized, and the
development of the system is in
progress.

ICT-based system to record
and manage census data
of the plantation sector

to facilitate the Ministry

in taking evidence-

based decisions on the
development of the estate
sector.
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36 e-Heritage Project: “Heritage Sri Lanka" Mobile and Improve tourist
Web application development is attractiveness of Sri Lanka
Cutting-edge Technology | completed and now live. (https://www. [ by promoting heritage
for Heritage Information | heritagesrilanka.gov.lk). tourism using innovative

technologies to provide
The system enables dissemination of | location-based information.
information and quick global access.

The system development was
completed in the list of Heritage Sites,
Monuments, Buildings, other structures
and cultural events in Polonnaruwa
District

Digital Prosperity - Industry Development

82 eSwabhimani Annual eSwabhimani Award Ceremony 2019 To promote and popularize
Programme and has been completed. the development of relevant
Associated Activities e-Content and applications

152 applications were received. as per the local requirement.

Introduce applicants to the
world market.

85 Industry Development Since 2016, through the Industry To improve competitiveness
Programme development program, 250+ companies | in the IT-BPM industry and
were supported to develop international | create IT-BPM-related jobs
and local market through various across all sectors.

initiatives, including Disrupt Asia,
Australia Market Access Facilitations,
Infotel & NITC.

A number of individuals were supported
through different programmes under
the industry knowledge enhancement
programme;

Quality Code Manual completed and
launched.

New graduates, interns, fresh employees
and companies will be benefitted in
using and practicing of quality coding
standard.

Workforce Survey 2018 final draft
completed and presented the report to
the ICTA and stakeholders.




NPD [ Project Achievement Goals of the project
No
Digital Inclusion & Adoption - Society Empowerment and Inclusion

13 Integrated Welfare | The social registry integrated system has To develop a one-stop
Management been completed up to Iteration 2 based on shop for integrated
System(IWMS) the agreements reached with the primary welfare and Subsidy

stakeholders. Management to
improve efficiency

A functional and security audit has been carried | and effectiveness

out by an independent party and the system has | of management and

been improved according to the audit report. delivery of social
welfare and subsidies.

Two change requests were made by the

Welfare Benefit Board. Both changes have been

incorporated to the IWMS system.

75 Digital Libraries Seven digital libraries (public libraries) have To become the national
for Knowledge been established Colombo MC, Badulla, digital knowledge hub
Enhancement Polonnaruwa, Kurunagala, Batticaloa, Colombo | by providing convenient

National Library, and Batticaloa). and affordable access,
to effective usage of

Completed 80% of the digitization of electronic information/e

Kirimatiyana and Opanayake libreries. books and educational
materials to citizens

Project Steering Committee and a library level through Digital

working committee has been established Libraries.

to make policy and project implementation

decisions.

Completed a base line study for the Digital

Libraries Project.

85 library staff have been trained in managing

the Digital Library System.

44 Development of The development of nine e-government services | To automate key public

Electronic Services | has been completed, out of which six have been | services of government
launched. organizations, and
citizen-centric and
Three workshops were completed for 75 business-friendly
government officers to identify the most services through
viable eServices and mobile applications for multiple delivery
government organizations. channels.
45 Management Call Centre has been established and To provide information

and Operation

of Government
Information Center
(GIC)

operationalized.

Requirement gathering is ongoing for developing
GIC portal and GIC mobile application.

Completed 10 workshops on managing website,
managing chatbot, and updating the knowledge
base with the participation of 200 government
officers.

Chatbot Implementation was completed for the
most demanding 20 organizations as planned.

about Government
services in the most
effective, efficient, and
friendly manner.

Use all electronic
means as well as

social media with the
identification of the
need and importance of
providing Government
information from a

single location.
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48

ICT Human
Resource Capacity
Building for
Government Digital
Transformation

eLearning platform has been fully completed
and launched.

The Right to Information Act has been entirely
digitized and has been included as a module in
the system.

30 CIOs have completed the Master program on
eGovernence.

To empower and build
the required capacity
among all public sector
employees.

Ensure they are
confident and
competent in adopting
citizen centric public
services.

76

Smart Society and
Citizen Capacity
Building

860 (238in 2018; 622 in 2017) Smart Social
Circles launched in 25 districts. 8,400
knowledge agents trained on the use of new
technologies, social media, including online
marketing, cloud funding, citizen journalism
Consultative planning sessions conducted
with ministry of Women and Child Affairs with
the participation of 30 government officers,
including directors, assistant directors, women
development officers.

840 community-level workshops held with
active participation of 60,200 citizens from the
25 districts.

To facilitate the
transformation of the
current society to a
SMART society through
the intervention of
digital technologies
and to build required
competencies among
all citizens to become
active participants in
a digitally empowered
society.

Digital Enablement

24

Setting up and
Maintenance

of Systems
Facilitating Right
to Information
initiative/s (Open
Data Portal)

The Open Data Portal (https://data.gov.
Ik) is operationalized.

135 data sets have been published on
the website.

Reviewing the portal and obtaining user
feedback on an ongoing basis.

To facilitate an open and
transparent Government.

Encourage evidence-based
decision making within
Government.

25

e-Government
Policy and Strategy

The E-Government (eGov) policy has
been finalized after obtaining public
opinion through various means,
including a paper advertisement and a
blog. Additionally, two workshops were
conducted for government officials,
including CIOs, for their opinion. Further,
the eGov policy has been translated to
Sinhala and Tamil.

To ensure the e-Government
Policy and e-Government
Strategy is ratified and followed
by the entire Government sector.
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Implementation
of Results-Based
Monitoring and
Evaluation

Completion of ICTA Corporate Plan and
Business Plan.

Completion of E-Government survey and
Country wide ICT Survey.

Preparation of monthly and quarterly
progress reports for the year 2019.

Conducted evaluation of capacity
building workshops for ICTA Staff,
Government Staff, and Parliamentarians.

Completed Monitoring & Evaluation
capacity building workshops for 40 ICTA
Project Management Staff and M&E ToT
for Program for 95 Government Staff.

Economic Analysis of Lanka Government
Network 2.0 completed.

Assessment of e-Readiness of local
authorities completed.

Following evaluation assessments have
been completed.

+ Study on the effectiveness of CIO
programme

+ Rapid Assessment of e Revenue
License (eRL) System

+ Evaluation of the performance of
Government Information Center

+ Rapid Assessment - e-Registration of
Companies (ROC) Project

+ Outcome Assessment of Smart Social
Circle project

+ Rapid Assessment of EPF System

+ Rapid Assessment of Integrated
Welfare Management (IWM) System

+ Assessment on intermediate
outcomes of LGN

+ Event Evaluation on Jaffna Enterprise
Sri Lanka exhibition

To strengthen the ICTA
Monitoring and Evaluation
(M&E) system to effectively
measure the progress of
development results of the
digital transformation strategy
using the Theory of Change and
Results Based Management
Approach as development-
oriented tools.
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Internal Audit Division Updates

In this report we describe the role of the Internal Audit Division and the Audit & Management Committee,
and its functioning during the year 2019. The main priorities were to provide assurance on the soundness
of the financial reporting, effective risk identification and management, and compliance with the relevant
legislation.

Overview of the Internal Audit

Internal Auditing is an independent function within ICTA, which reports directly to the Chairman and the
Board of Directors (via the Board sub-committee, Audit and Management Committee), with the objective of
adding value to the organization and its stakeholders in line with its strategies, objectives and risk factors.
The Director — Internal Audit submits the observations/ reports to the Audit & Management Committee, while
administratively reporting to the Chief Executive Officer of the organization.

Internal Audit strives to provide independent and relevant assurance that the organization's risk management,
governance and internal control processes are operating effectively.

The scope of internal auditing within an organization is broad and may involve areas such as the effectiveness
of operations, the reliability of financial reporting, deterring and investigating fraud, safeguarding of company
assets, and compliance with rules and regulations. The objectives are achieved by way of systematic analysis
and assessment of data, information and business processes, and providing insights and recommendations.

With the commitment to integrity and accountability, all the internal business operations are evaluated
periodically, with varying frequencies depending upon the nature and the risk factors involved, to assess and
provide independent assurances on each of the areas.

Functions of the Internal Audit Division

+ Designing, developing and executing the annual Internal Audit plan of ICTA.

+ Ensuring the strengthening of the overall internal control systems.

+ Risk assessment of business operations, pointing out process flaws to the management and providing
recommendations to improve the same.

+ Review and appraisal of existing accounting and reporting systems to make improvements thereto.

« Ascertain controls with regards to safeguarding of assets of ICTA.

+ Review of internal IT controls, i.e. IT general controls and IT systems controls for assessing the efficiency
of the systems in place.

«  Assess compliance of business processes with internal policies and procedures and applicable rules and
regulations.

+  Submission of reports to the Audit and Management Committee based on the findings of the above
mentioned tasks and convene Audit and Management Committee meetings.

«  Preparation and circulation of the decisions of the Audit Committee to Heads of Divisions to take
appropriate action.

+  Submission of Quarterly Assessment reports to the Line Ministry.

+ Submission of Quarterly performance review reports to the Audit and Management Committee on
achievement of annual Action Plan, Procurement Plan and the Disbursement Plan (budgeted vs. actual).

+  Provide management with assurance / recommendations on specific areas of concerns.
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+ Review of and contribution in developing various internal operational procedures.

« Liaising with the National Audit Office with regards to the Management Audit.

« Liaising with the Chief Internal Auditor of the Line Ministry.

+  Conducting independent reviews / special reviews / investigations/ inquiries etc. based on the request of
the Chairman/ Board of Directors.

« Assist and make recommendations to various committees appointed by the Chairman for review of
external policies and procedures, from time to time.

Internal Audit Activities Carried out in 2019

Sl. | Description Status

No.

1 Review of the project performance of the Completed and submitted the Internal Audit
E-pensions project Report

2 Review on the Government Analyst Completed and submitted the Internal Audit
Department — Procurement of Internal Network | Report

Infrastructure Development Project

3 Review of Project related payments of
Government Analyst Department — ICT
Solution

4 Review of the BYOD policy vs. Laptop rental
process — Observations

5 Review of the Procurement of an Event

Completed and submitted the Internal Audit
Report

Completed and submitted the Internal Audit
Report

Completed and submitted the Internal Audit

Manager for Enterprise Sri Lanka, Jaffna Event

Report

6 Review on the Procurement of anti-virus Completed and submitted the Internal Audit
software for Welfare benefits Board (WBB) Report
7 Review of Payment Management process — Draft completed

Capital and Operational expenditure

8 Annual Board of Survey — 2019

9 Review of the effective utilization of project
funds and reporting

Completed — Observations reported

Completed — Observations reported

10 | Verification of Bank reconciliation Completed

11 | Coordinate with National Audit Office, Completed
regarding all audit queries & replies — 25 audit
queries

12 | Convene and conduct Audit and Management | Completed
Committee meetings — 7 meetings

13 | Coordinate with Line Ministry Completed

14 | Quarterly Line Ministry Audit and Management | Completed
Committee meetings — 4

15 | Review of various policies and procedures — Completed

On need basis
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Audit and Management Committee Updates

The purpose of the Audit and Management Committee (AMC) is to assist the Board in reviewing all audit
and management aspects of the ICT Agency of Sri Lanka (including financial reporting and compliance) to
ensure that its resources are used economically and efficiently to achieve the predetermined objectives of the
entity as a whole, or in respect of any specific project or program undertaken giving priority to the resources
available in Sri Lanka; and ascertain whether such objectives have been achieved within the authorized
time limits, for the disbursement of funds allocated for such activity, and whether any completed project or

program is in actual operation as envisaged in the plans.
The Role of the Audit & Management Committee

+  The scope of the Committee would include amongst others, the following: (as per the Public Enterprise
Guidelines).

+  Determination of the responsibilities of the Internal Audit Unit and review of the annual audit plans.

« Review and evaluate internal control systems for all activities of the entity.

+ Evaluating the effectiveness of the risk management process.

+ Review performance at regular intervals for cost effectiveness and to eliminate wasteful expenditure etc.
« Liaise with external auditors and follow up on Auditor General's/ external auditors Management Letters.
+ Ascertain whether statutes, regulations, rules and circulars are complied with.

+ Review of the integrity of the financial statements with a view to ensure its compliance with Accounting
Standards, including annual reports, half-year reports, and quarterly financial statements

+ Review internal audit/external audit reports, Management Letters for remedial action
+  Review implementation of recommendations/directives of the Committee on Public Enterprises
+  Prepare report on the findings of the Committee for inclusion in the Annual Report

+ Reports to the Board of Directors on its activities and recommendations
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Composition of the Audit and Management Committee

The Audit & Management Committee of ICTA comprises independent Non-Executive Directors with a
minimum requirement of three such members. The Committee for the year 2019 was appointed in May, 2018
with 2 Members from the previous Committee being reappointed, and the Treasury representative continued
as the Chairman of the Audit & Management Committee. The Board members have satisfied themselves that
the members of the Audit & Management Committee are competent in financial matters and have recent and
relevant experience.

The other attendees at the Committee meeting (or part thereof) were the Company Secretary, Head of Finance,
Head of Monitoring and Evaluation, Head of HR / Administration, Director — Legal, Director — Procurement
etc. In addition, during the year, the Committee members have met without others being present to discuss
issues directly.

The Audit & Management Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its

responsibility of ensuring that ICTA's financial reporting and internal controls, including audits, are adequate
and undertaken efficiently.

Summary of the Meetings of the Audit and Management Committee

Committee Member Member Since No. of Meetings Attended
for the year 2019

Ananda Wijerathne February, 2015 7

Kapila Sri Chandrasekera May, 2018 7

Sujeewa Karunasekara April, 2019 — till June, 2019 1

Manohara S. Thilakawardana June, 2019 2

Meetings of the Audit and Management Committee

During the year 2019, 7 Audit and Management Committee meetings were held, and the following matters
were discussed at the said meetings.
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1. Audit and Management Committee Meeting held on 21-February

-2019.

Internal Audit Plan for 2019

Presented to the Audit & Management Committee and
recommended to be approved by the Board of Directors

Board of Survey

The AMC was updated on the progress of the activity
and the observations made thereon.

Financial Status Update

AMC advised that the Report should be updated with
creditors' balances, and that the Report should be
provided on a monthly basis.

Financial Statements for 2016

The AMC instructed that subsequent to the accounting
adjustments for the year 2016, ICTA will have to

write to Treasury giving reasons as to why there are
considerable capital losses, and have an Extraordinary
General Meeting (EGM) convened.

Financial Statements for 2016

The expenses categorized as Consultancy fees are to be
renamed as “Salaries and Wages" and driver's overtime
expenses to be classified as a separate line item.

Queries Raised by Auditor General's
Department

With regards to a query raised, the AMC pointed out
that the verification survey of the Fixed Assets had
cost Rs.10 Mn in the previous year, and therefore that
a decision has been taken by ICTA not to carry out
another survey in the current year.

To follow-up on all the pending audit queries and ensure
responses are sent out within the requested time frame.

2. Audit & Management Committee Meeting held on 15-March-2019.

Draft financial Accounts of ICTA and LGl for
2016

This meeting was convened especially to discuss the
draft financial accounts of 2016 for ICTA and LGIl and
recommend them for approval by the Board.

The correct depreciation provision on Fixed Assets

had been re-worked from 2010 to 2015, based on
which adjustments have been incorporated in the 2016
accounts to reflect the correct value of the fixed assets.




3. Audit and Management Committee Meeting held on 29-March-2019

Subject Area

Actions/ Decisions Taken

Draft financial Accounts of ICTA and LGII for 2016

This meeting was convened to discuss and finalize
the draft financial accounts of 2016 for ICTA and
LGII and recommend them for approval by the
Board.

With regard to the hiring of personnel whose
positions cannot be filled in internally, the AMC
advised that a costing sheet be prepared and the
approval be firsthand obtained from the Board.

4. Audit and Management Committee Meeting held on 16-May-2019

Subject Area

Actions/ Decisions Taken

Convening of an Extraordinary General Meeting
(EGM)

Convening of an EGM, Re: Loss of Capital — to be
decided once Board approval is obtained for the
accounts.

Update of Financial status

Line Ministry has sent a request to obtain approval
for the ICTA Re-Structure Proposal from the Cabinet
of Ministers and for approval of the Salary Structure
from the Line Ministry, before the recruitment of
new staff including the CEQ, CFO, and the CTO are
carried out. Since without the proper approvals,

the recruitments for the key positions cannot be
initiated, this to be communicated in writing to the
Line Ministry with a copy to the Public Enterprises
Department of the Treasury.

Update on the Board of Survey

The draft report of the observations made on the
Board of Survey activity was presented to the AMC.

AMC advised that the obsolete or outdated items
can be written off with Board approval after
obtaining certification form technical experts.

Auditor General's observations on e-Pensions
project

AMC advised to examine and provide information
whether any payments were effected by ICTA
between 2010 and 2013, after Virtusa had in 2010
submitted a UAT Report that the Project was

not ready for services. AMC also advised to find
information as to what action was initiated or taken
by ICTA subsequent to the adverse Report given by
Virtusa.

Audit Queries raised by the Internal Audit Team of
the Line Ministry

To follow up and take necessary corrective
actions for the observations made. And provide
clarifications to the Ministry audit team.

Financial statements for 2016 and 2017 (for ICTA
and LGII)

The Financial Statements of ICTA, SLCERT & the
LGII for 2016 and 2017 were tabled, and it was
noted that the Accounts of SLCERT & the LGII will
have to be approved by the relevant Boards, for
ICTA Accounts to be approved.
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5. Audit and Management Committee Meeting held on 10-July-2019

Subject Area

Actions/ Decisions Taken

Delegation of Authority — Payment process

As a new Head of Finance has been hired, the AC directed
that this matter be finalized within a week and a paper to
be submitted to the next Audit Committee.

Auditor General's observations on e-Pen-
sions project

Internal Auditor submitted her observations with regards
to the above project, by conducting a performance review
and highlighted the issues noted. The AMC advised to
bring this matter to the notice of the Board.

Financial Status update — June, 2019

Head of Finance to be instructed to write to Line Ministry
on the need of ICTA to maintain multiple bank accounts.

Update on the matters discussed at the
Quarterly Line Ministry AMC meeting

AMC decided that a written response be submitted to the
Secretary, Line Ministry concerning the queries (related to
ICTA) recorded in the above minutes.

Effective utilization of Project funds for proj-
ect related training activities

Internal Auditor raised a company-wide memo through
CEO on the above matter (based on observations made,
on project fund utilization), and the AMC advised to refer
the Memo to the Board, and to write to the Ministry & the
Auditor General.

Update on the Procurement of anti-virus
software licenses for e-Samurdhi Project

AC advised the Internal Auditor to examine the payments
of said Project, and thereafter to submit a reply to the Au-
ditor General informing the findings.

6. Audit and Management Committee Meeting held on 03-October-2019

Subject Area

Actions/ Decisions Taken

Review on the additional cabling at the
Government Analysts Department (GAD)

The report on the review of the said project was tabled.

AMC advised to obtain current prices quotations from the
market and seek approval from the Secretary, Treasury to
settle the matter with the vendor.

Internal Audit Observations on e-Pensions
Project

AMC noted that it is the end user who should carry out

the UAT and issue the User/Operational Acceptance
Certificate in respect of all Projects, and that this condition
be informed to officers of ICTA.

Financial Status Update — June, 2019

AMC proposed to have an account opened with the
People's Bank as an alternative to the Sampath Bank
account. — To address the Auditor General's concerns.

Delegation of Authority

The schedule listing the type and value of procurements,
and the criteria relating to authorization, approval, and
execution of such procurements, submitted by the Head of
Finance, was reviewed by the AMC.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

AMC decided to follow the government procurement
process in selecting a party for this insurance process, and
approval be obtained by a circular resolution.

84




Annual Report - 2019

7.Auditand Management Committee Meetingheldon29-November-2019

Delegation of Authority The AMC advised to circulate the Board Paper adopt-
ed in 2007, and to propose to the Board to opt for a
decision based on the current NPC Guidelines.

Review of project-related payments of Govern- AMC decided that the matter be referred to the NPC
ment Analysts Department (GAD) — ICT solution for advice.
(draft report)

BYOD policy vs. Laptop rental — observations of AMC advised to convey to CTO to ensure that regular
internal Audit back-ups are taken from the devices purchased un-
der the BYOD scheme, and to request CTO to attend
to the needful using the available servers for storing
the back-ups.

A decision on whether to continue with the BYOD
Policy is to be taken by early next year.

Review of the Procurement of an Event Manager The AMC declined to recommend the payment to the
for Enterprise Sri Lanka, Jaffna event — Internal vendor and advised to seek further advice from the
Audit report Secretary, Line Ministry, in executing the payments
to the said vendor due to the issues raised via Audit
observations.
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Regulatory Requirements of the Information and Communiczi®: o Pechrology Agrncy . o o
(Private) Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019 in tezrs of

Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No.19 of 2018.

T. Financial Statements
1.1 Oualified Opinion

The audit of the financial statements of the Information and Communication Technology
Agency {Private) Limited (“Company™) and its subsidiaries (“Group™) for the year ended 31
December 2019 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, statement of changes in equity and cash [ow
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significanl accounting policies, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of
provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka read in conjunction with provisiens of the National Audit Act No, 19 of 2018.My report
1o Parliament in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (&) of the Constitution will be tabled in

due course.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for Qualified Opimon
section of my report, the accompanying financial statements of the Company and the Group
pive a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash fows for the year then ended in
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
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Emphasis of Matter

I draw attention to note No3 8 o the hnancial Etﬂll.‘mi:lllEJ. Which indicates that the

Company’s total liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.1,887,834,007 and Company’s

current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 1,896,995,140 as at 31 December 2019,

However, there is no payable to suppliers at the end of year 2020 due to settlement ol payables

as at 31 December 2019 during the year 2020 out of funds received from treasury.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

1.2

()

(b)

(e}

(¢l

()

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Other payables and receivables of the Company as al the end of the year under review
was Rs2.103.431.719 and Rs.36,062,521 respectively. However, contrary to the
paragraph 32 of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No |, the payable amounting to Rs.2,
(97,483,143 had been brought forward after setting off the receivable amount of Bs.5,
048,576, As a result, other receivable and payable had been understated by Rs.5,
048,576,

All fixed assets of the Company had been revalued for Rs. 37,988,641 in the year 2017,
Re-valued assets amounting to Rs.2, 614,689 and related accumulated depreciation
amount Rs.522 938 had been removed from financial statements during the year under
review without proper approval. Further, the carring amount ol the respective assels
amounting to Rs.2,091,751 had been transferred to the profit and loss account during

the year under review.

The assets valued of Rs. 5,901,106 which were verified in the revaluation process n
the year 2017, and its aceumulated depreciation amounting to Rs. 1,180,221 had heen

removed from financial statements as considering derecognized assets in the year 2019

without proper approval.

As per the financial statemenis of the Company, the amount payable to CERT private
limited as at 31 December 2019 was Rs.40,215 928 However as per CERT records it

was Rs. 42,551,302 and there was a difference of Rs. 2,335,374

Thirteen (13) vouchers valued at R£.26,001,990 for the year under review had not been
submitted for the audit.
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| conducted my audit n accordance with St Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My
responsibilities, under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. [ believe that the audit evidence

| have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion,

1.3  Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial stalements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with 5ri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determine is necessary (o enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstztement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related (o going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

higquidate the Group or 1o cease operations, or has no realistie alternative bul to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseemg the Group®s [inancial reporting

Process.

As per Section 16{1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the Company and Croup are
required to maintain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, asscts and
liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to be prepared of the Company
and Group.

1.5  Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auodit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audil evidence thal is sullicient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from emror, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company and
the Group.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimales and related disclosures made by (he management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ahility to continue as a going concern. 1T 1 conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue

4% & going CoOncern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
mncluding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Ohbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
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financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance

of the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during
my audit,

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

MNational Audit Act, No, 19 of 2018 and Companics Act, No. 7 of 2007 include specific

provisions for following requirements.

. Except for the effect of the matters described in the hasis for the qualified opinion
paragraph, | have oblained all the information and cxplanation that required for the
audit and as far as appears from my examination, proper accounting records have heen
kept by the Company as per the requirement of section 163 (2) (d) of the Companics
Act, No. 7 of 2007andsection 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018,

. The financial statements of the Company comply with the requirement of section 151
of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007.

. The financial statements presented is consistent with the preceding vear as per the
requirement of section 6 (1) (d) (i1} of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2013,

. The financial statements presented includes all the recommendations made by me in
the previous vear as per the reguirement of section 6 (1) (d) (iv) of the National Auwdit
Act, No. 19 of 2018,

Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained which limited (o matlers that are

material, nothing has come to my attention;

. to state that any member of the governing body of the Company has any direct or
indirect interest in any contract entered into by the Company which are out of the
normal course of business as per the requirement of section 12 (d) of the National Audit

Act, No. 19 o[ 2013,
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. to state that the Company has not complied with any applicable written law, general
and special directions issued by the governing body of the Company as per the
requircment of section 12 (f) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 except for;

Reference to law/ direction Dreseription

Paragraph 3.9 of the Public During the year under review, the assets valued
Enterprises Circular No, PEIV12 of o Rs.3, 273,883 had been transferred to other

02 June 2003 government entities without proper approval
. to state that the Company has not performed according to its powers, functions and
dutics as per the requirement of section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act, No, 19 of
200 K.
. to state that the resources of the Company had not been procured and utilized

economically, efficiently and effectively within the time frames and in compliance with
the applicable laws as per the requirement of section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act,
No. 19 of 2018,

3 Oiher matters

{a) Total estimated cost of the Automating of the Government Analyst Department (GAD)
consist of 4 main components was amounting to Rs40 million, Under the 1%
component, a contract valued at Rs.23.39 million was awarded to Private Company to
provide ICT solution. Although the ICTA had been paid a sum of Rs.17.51 million or
75 present of the estimated cost to the Company as at 31 December 2019, the project
was suspended due to non fulfilment of GAD requirements.

{b) The payment vouchers valued alRs. 525,695,777 had not been approved by Chief
Executive officer and the delegation of authority also had not been done.

W.P.C. Wickramaratne :: y

Auditor CGreneral
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ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PVT) LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3158T DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FIGURES ARE 1IN SRI LANKAN RUFEES)

Group Crmpany
HOTE e 101K FLk] 2018
Ievenie | 1500, 126006 3,066, 791,552 1,466,505, 706 2999, 306,855
(iher Imcome 5 165,465, 2% 10, L (250 165,345,255 7,004, 825
Gain on Misposal of suhsidiaries . (34,335 455) 2 {201}
Grant Disharsements
Progect Implementntian Expenses [ 1o 482711 L6, 335,668 1,934, 510,033 603,743,625
Net Surplus on Operating Activities (467,356, 706) 371,910,429 (468,244,327 395,503,212
Projeel Infrastraciure & Support Services 7 T, 240074 50,202,850 G21A15.538 73,185,957
et Surplusi{Defct) from Operating Activiries (58,206, TTH) 251,627,570 (530H59, Bhi) 311,373,258
Net Surplus/(Treficit) on Mon-Grand Activilis 75 2,793,590 (Fo5,504,811) 0. TTE 080
STATEMENT OF COMPREINENSIVE INCOME
Lo Cumpany
NOTE JE] Pl ) 2019 zug

Mt Burplush Delica) for the Penod

(372, 830,375] 292,793,398 (3030461 1) 329 7T 0
(hiber Comprehensive [ncome
Pienas mal b be reclaasilied ta Profil or Loss
Avhmrial Loss on Delined Beasfit P 3,502,877 3,308 608
Rewaluntion ol Prapery Mant and Eguipment 1,724,515 11,601,568 - -
Irecomme Ta FoFiect an COther Comprchensive Income
Oither Comprehensive Loss For ihe Perdod, Net of Tax 5,308,512 11,600,368 3,308 60 =
Tatal Comprehensive Ingome for the Period, Net of Tax I 6T 304,395, 167 [ELFRICTE] 320,778, G0

The Aceoaiting Policics and poles on pages 5 throagh 25 foem an integeal pan of e Finnneisl Stements.




ICT AGENCY OF SR1 LANKA (PVT) LTD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 315T DECEMBER 2019
(ALL FIGURES ARE IM SRI LANKAN RUPEES)

Group Compamy
NOTE 2019 1018 019 2018
Assels
Non-Current Awsets
Property, Plant & Equipment 8 40,224,110 39,619,154 34,374,115 30,150,913
Intangible Assets 9 2,0%09,200 2,785,600 2,069,200 2 785,600
Financial Assets 10 5 - 10 10
42313 310 42 404,754 316,463,325 ¥2.536.523
Current
Other Reecivables 11 30,391,155 ¥ 93,738 30,113,945 72,709,088
Ampants Due from Related Party 17 - = - -
Cash & Cash Equivalenis 12 254,732,139 258,000,254 254,591,272 258,978,336
285,123,255 281,292,993 284,705,217 281,268,325
Tatal Assets T27 436,605 323,607,746 g5 3 5K R TF &7 TE ¥
Linbiliti
Stated Capital 13 20 20 20 20
Bevaluntion Reserve 13,326,103 11,601,568 - -
Accumulated Surplus (1,856,338,341 LABT.000,744)  (1BET.B34,027)  (1,525,628.004)
Total Equity (1,503, A09.156)  (LBBTB34,007)  (1,525,628,0M)
Mon-Carrent Liabilitics
Retircment Benefit 14 30,579,463 13,923 366 27,193,382 31,319,437
Deferred Revenue for Grant Assets 15 720,556 £ 108810 -
31,300,01% 13,923 366 27.302.192 31,319437
Trucke & Other Payahles 16 2,098,932, 875 1,725,047,607 2,097,483,143 725,047,607
Amounts Due o Related Parly 17 40,215,928 400,215,928 84217213 83,465,807
2,139, 148,504 1,765,263,536 2 181,700,357 LB08,513.415
Tatal Equity & Linbilities 313,697,746 321,168,542 JEAIHET

The Accounting Policics and notes on pagss 5 through 25 form an integral part ol the Financial Statemends,
These Financial Statcments are In compliance with the requitemeants of the Companies Act Mo, 07 of 2007,

e
< Head ot Finiige

Tl board of directors is responsible for the preponsion and presentation of these F

Sipned and on behallof the board by;
e '
F e
e

ial Statements,

e

Chairman

20 May 2021
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ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA {(FVYT) LTD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 35T DECEMBER 2017
{ALL FIGURES ARE IN BRI LANKAN RUTEES)

Gruup Cinmpany
2019 08 009 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Swmplus!{ Deficil} for the Year (172.E3 ], 575) 292,793 594 (3655144610 I TR0
Adjustments For;
Liepreciatton & Amortization 14,143, 157 HE T T B, 477,249 234,128
Reeniremend Benefits - Carment Service Cosl 4,452 504 2,146, THE 1A61415 1310337
Renirement Henefits - Intered Casl 31,731,570 - 1445138 -
Retirement Benefits - Pail [ V.52, 000 (4, 1HE3EHE) (724 00y (140 b
Cranin on Disgpoal of ssteidiarics - 4,335,455 - 20
RV ol Assers Dispoead Previous vear 1506, 58 - - .
Drefierred Revenue for Giram Assets Adnstment TH 336 A4 TR ) IR (205,976,407}
Asets Trawesfer oot entitiesMansaln 2619, 104 EX1,009 650 1419,106 120.01% 450
[e-recognifing il T2, RES - 4, T20.EEF -
Irnpairmeed 1.937.594 - L Ak | -
Larss om - rivadusticn 124,299 T8 1) 133,786,206 (24200 T8 133,786,206
Wil of T 14,500,774 - I4 809,774 -
Wrile Aack {13,545, 1113 " (153846013 .

(508 I58 HEI) 189,332,334 (508, 750,276) IRPO] 1625
Wirrkinig Capital Clianges
i lnerease) | Decresss i Other Beceivabdes R L E LD 218,206 (ALAATING EIR.206
Increpse [ [Mecresse] i (hher Poynhles 527,831,280 (59,281,464 5265R1.548 (56,294, 598 )
Incresse [ | Decreas] m Rilaled Partses a (2,335,314 TG 4 960 THY
I | Dicreaess) i Cirast Payahle = - L=
bt Cash Gaesermied [ Lised ing from Operating Acitvities (3.5, 792) pra RaER L) {4.251.053) IR0
Casls Flows lrom levestimg Acilvitles
Additions to Priperty, Plant & Fquipneent (832,323 = {1.054,835) =
Aesets Trnslor o Kelaled Party - oa.533 -
Diispeal of sabaidinnies - - -
et Casly Genermed | Lsed in froan Investing Activities Ay Rl = (136002} -
Cush Flows from Finnmcing Activities
lsmuw ol shiaires - - - -
Mt Casly Geawered | Ubsed lnd from Flnancing Activiises - - - -
Cash & Cash Fquivalends as ot ihe begimming of the YWenr 258,950 254 ISR A2 I58.978.336 21,182,314
Encrease | {Deencase) i Cash and Cash Equivalens {4, 207,115) T2E 500 (487 65) LR A K2
ﬁi-smml af subsidmaries [4.453.076)
Cnsh & Cnsh Equivalents rs at the Emal of the Yenr 15:4,732.13% L5890, 154 154,591,2T1 238,078,336

T posmniing policks md noscs Foom a9 ieceral poes of the Fisancinl Soiements,
Figures in hrackets indicate deductines,
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INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (FVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE L STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

1
1.1

1.2

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Gencral
The [Information & Communication

Technology Agency of Sri Lanka (Private)
Limited (ICTA) was incorporated on 12th May
2003 under the Companies Act No. 17 of 1982,
with the Secretary to the Treasury and the
Secretary to the Ministry of Economic Reform,
Science and Technology as the subscribers and
ICTA has been re-registcred with the
registration MNo. of PV 4055 under the
Companies Act No 7 of 2007, The registered
office of the Company is situated at No 16024,
Kirimandala Mawatha, Colombo 05,

statements  of
Information  Communication  Technology
Agency of Sri Lanka (Private) Limited- ICTA
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019
comprise the company and its subsidiary Lanka
Govemnment  Information  Infrastructure
(Private) Limited —LGI (together refemed to as
the “Group).

The consolidated financial

Principal Activitics and Nature of

Operations
The Company provides all information and
assistance for the formulation of the Mational
Policy on Information Communication
Technology to the Inter Ministerial Committes
on Information Communication Technology
appointed by the Cabinet of Ministers & assists

the Cabinet of Ministers to approve the

Mational Policy Framework in refation o
Information and Communication Technology.

By virtue of Information and Communication
Technology Act. No. 27 of 2003 as amended in
2007, the company is also empowered to
develop and implement strategies and programs
on information and communication technology

in both the public and private sectors,

1.3  Date of Authorization for Issuc

2.1

The [inancial statements of Information &
Communication Technology Agency of Sri
Lanka (Pvt) Led for the year ended December
31, 2019 was authorized for issuance by the
directors on 20® May 2021,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements which have been
presented in Sri Lankan Rupees have been
prepared on a historical cost basis.

Statement of Complinnce

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group and the separate financial statements of
the Company have been prepared in accordance
with the Sr Lanka Accounting Standards
(herein reforred SLFRSs/LKASS)
effective from |5t January 2012, laid down by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka (CASL) and the requirements of the
Companics Act No. 07 ol 2007,

o as




INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PYT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

2.2  Responsibility for financial statements

The Board of Directors of the Company is
responsible  for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated and  separate  financial
statements have been prepared on the historical
cost hasis, excepl assels recorded in Property,
Plant & Equipment which are measured at
valuation less depreciation and the retirement
benefit obligations are measured at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as
explained in the respective notes to the financial
statcments. These financial siatements have
been prepared on the basis that the Company
and the Group would continue as a poing

concern for the foreseeable Toture,

Functional and presentation currency
The financial stalements are presented in Sri
Lankan Rupees, which is the company's

functional and presentation currency.

2.5 Useof Estimates & Judgments and

assumplions
The preparation of fnancial statements in
conformity with SAd  Lanka Accounting
Standards require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

ingome and expenses,

The estimates and undertying assumptions are
based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed (o be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other
SOUTCES.

The estimates and underlying assumptions arc
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
aceounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision  affects both current and  future
periods.

Information  about  significant  areas of
cstimation, uncerainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the
most  significant effect on  the amounts
recognised in the financial statements, is stated
below:

Fair value of non-financial assets
The fair value used by the Group in the
measurement of non-financial assets is based
on the presumption that the tansection to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place
cither in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market
in the most advantagcous markel that is
accessible by the Group for the asset or

liability The fair value of an asset or a liability

is measured using the assumptions that market
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INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY Af ;ENCY OF SRI LANKA (PYT) LTD
NOTES INAMNOCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended 31 December 2019

parlicipants  would act in their markel rates, discount rate and anlicipation of future
participani's ability to penerate economic salary  increases, Variation in  these
assumptions may significantly impact the
defined benefit obligation amount and the

annual defined benefit expense.

benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the assct in its

highest and best use.
2.5.5 Fair value of financial instruments
The Group uses valuation technigques that are

: Ma t applies valuation techniques to
appropriate in the circumstances and for which nagement apphics v iq

. determi the fair valee of financial
sufficient data are available @ measure fair i :;

ot instruments where active market quotes are
value, maximizing the use of relevant

ot available. This requires management to
observable inpuis and minimising the use of et S o
: develop estimates and assumptions based on
unobservable inputs.
market inputs, using obscrvable dats that

2,52 Usefal lives of depreciable assets market participants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where such data is not observable,

management uses its best estimate. Lstimated

Managemenl reviews its estimation of the
uscful lives of depreciable assets at each
reporting date based on the expected utility of
the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates

fuir values of financial instruments may vary
from the actual prices that would be achieved
relate to techmical obsolescence that may in an arm's length transaction at the reporting
change the useful life of cerlain property, plant date.

and equipmenl.
T 256 Measurement of Fair values

2.53 Business combinations A number of the Group's accounting policies
and disclosures require measurement of fair

values, for both financial and non-financial

Management uses valuation techniques in

determining the fair values of the various

elements of a business combination. The fair
value of contingent consideration is dependent
on the outcome of many variables that affect
future profitability.

2.54 Defined benefit obligation

Management's cstimate of the defined benefit
obligation is based on a number of critical

underlying assumptions such as mortality

asscts and liabilities.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Group's Audit Committee. When measuring
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Ciroup uses observable market data as far as

possibhe.

Consolidated Financial




INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended 31 December 2019

26 Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is
presented separately in the consolidated
financial statements. Iltems of dissimilar nature
or function are presented separately unless
they are immaterial.

1.7 Comparative Information
The accounting policies have been consistently
applicd by the Company. Previous year's
figures and phrases have been re-arranged
wherever necessary, to conform to the current

year's presentation,

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of Consolidation

3.1.1 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method as at the acquisition
date, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration
transferred in the acquisition is generally
mensured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is
tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a
bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as
incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or
equity securitics. The consideration transferred
does not inclede amounts related to the
settlement of pre-existing relationships.

3.1.2  Subsidiary

A Subsidiary is an entity controlled by the
Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investes. The Group controls an
investee if, and only if, the Group has:

- Power over the investes (ie., existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee

- The ability to use its power over the investes
to affect its returns

The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumslances in assessing whether il has
power over an investee which includes;

-The contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee

-Rights arising from other contractual
amrangements

-The Group's voting rights and potential voling
rights over the investes.

The Group re-assesses whether or nol it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of contrel. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group oblains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,

liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
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acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated fnancial
statements from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of a subsidiary is
included in  the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continues to be consolidated until the date

when such control ceases.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the

Group’s accounting policies,

313  Non-controlling interest

For each business combination, the group elect
to measure any non-controlling interest in the

acquire either,

- Al fair valus
- Al their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, which arc generated al fair

value,

Change in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as transsctions with owners in

their capacity as owners.

Adjustment to non-confrolling interests are
based on a proportionate amount or the net
amount of the subsidiary.

Group does not have any non-controlling

interest as at the reporting date.

3.1.4 Lossof control

On the loss of control, the Group immediately
de-recogniscs the assets (including poodwill}
and liabilitiecs of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components
of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus
or deficit arising on the loss of control is
recognised in profit and loss. If the Group
retaing any intorest in the previous subsidiary,
then such interest is measured at fair value at
the date that control is lost. Any investment
retained is recognized at fair value,

A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an cquity transaction.

315 Reporting date

Group's subsidiary has the same reporting
period as the parent Company.

316  Intra-group transactions

Transfer prices between Group entities are set
on an arms-length basis in a manner similar to

transactions with third parties.

3.1.7 Transactions eliminated on

consolidation
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating Lo
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

, i )
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3.2

3.3

3.4

Forcign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Sri
Lankan Rupees, which is the company’s
functional and  presentation  currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded at the functional currency rate ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monitory assets
and liabilities denominated in  foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange rmuling at the
Statement of Financial Position. All differences
are taken to Statement of Comprehensive
monetary

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

Income. Mon- ilems that are
currency are translated wsing the exchange rates
as at dates of the initial translations. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are ftranslated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value

was determined.

Taxation
The Information
Technology Act No. 27 of 2003 provides, under
section 8(1), be exempt from the payment of

and  Communication

any tax on the income or profits of the Agency
o such extent as is permitted in terms of the
Inland Revenue Act, Mo 38 of 2000,

her Receivables
(her Receivables and dues from  related
Parties are recopnized at Cost,

3.5

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents are cash in hand,
demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments, readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk

of changes in value,

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and
deposits in banks net of outstanding bank
overdrafis. Investment with short maturities i.e.
three months or less from the date of scquisition

is also treated as cash equivalents.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

3.6.1

Recognition and measurement

ltems of properly, plant and equipment other
than land and buildings, are measurced at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses,

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
o working condition for its intended use. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials, direct labour and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset Lo the
working condition for its intended use, and
borrowing costs il the recognition criteria are
met.

This also includes cost of dismantling and

removing the items and restoring them in the
site on which they are located.

Consolidated Financial Stafcfients 2019

A\ I\“b- #d i

Wi

T



Annual Report - 2019

INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY AGENCY OF SRT LANKA (FVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

All items of property, plant and equipment arc
recognised intbially at cost and subsequently at

cost or at valuation.

Revaluations are performed with sufTicient
regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values ot the end of each

reporting period.

Any revaloation increase arising on  the
revaluation of assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and sccumulated in
equity, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in the income statemenl,
in which case the increase is credited to the

income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously expensed.

A decrease in the carrying amount arising on a
revaluation of land and buildings arc
recognised in the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the
property’s revaluation reserve relating to a

previous revaluation of the same assets.

Upon disposal, any related revaluation reserve
i5 transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained eamings and is not taken into account
in arriving al the gain or loss on disposal.

The details of revaluation of assets are
diselosed in note 12 1o the financial statements.

3.6.2 Significani components of property

plant and equipment
When parts of an item of propertly, plant and
equipment have differont useful lives than the
anderlying asset, they are identified and
accounted separately as major components of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated
separately bascd on their useful life.

363 Subsequent cost

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing a parl of an item, when it is probable
that the Tuture economic benefits embodied in
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amounts of the parts that are replaced are
recognised from the cost of the assel. The cost
of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment arc recognised in the income
statement as and when incurred.

A6.4 Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an assel less

its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the
estimated uscful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is
available for use and ceases at the earlicr of the
date that the asset is classified as held for sale
or on the date that the asset is disposed.

e s
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Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives unless it
is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives of property plant and

equipment are as follows:

Furniture Fitlings 3 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computer Hardwarc 5 years

The cost of replacement of components of
assets recognised in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is deprociated
over the balance useful life of the asset.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and the
residual values are reviewed at each reporting

date and adjusted accordingly.

3.6.5 De-recognition

A7

3T

The carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and cquipment is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no lulure economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal, The gain
or logs arising from de-recognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included in
profit or loss when item is de-recognised.

Leases
1 Finance leases

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes
substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership are classified as finance leases,

On initial recognition, the leased asscts under
property, plant and equipment, is measurcd at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and the present value of minimum lease
payments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
accounted for in  accordancc with the
accounting policy applicable to thal assel.
Minimum lease payments under finance leases
are apportioncd between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability,
The finance expense is allocated to each
period during the lease term 5o as to produce
a constant periodic rate interest on  the
remaining balance of the liability.

L7232 Operating leases

l.cases where the lessor effectively rotains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership over the assets are classified as
operating leases. Payments under operating
lcascs are recognised as an expense in the
income stalement on a steaight-line basis over
the term of the lease or any other basis more
representative of the time pattern of the
benefits derived from the lease.

The initial cost of acquiring a leasehold
property treated as an operating leasc is
recognised as a non-current asset and s
amortised over the period of the lease in
accordance with the pattern of benefits
expected to be derived from the lease. The
carrving amount of leasehold property is tested

for impairment annually,
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economic benefits embodied in the specific

3.8  Intangible asseis

Initial Recognition and measurement
The Group recognises intangible assets if it is
probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the assel will
flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can
be measurcd reliably.

Scparately acquired intangible assets are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of such separately acquired intangible
asseds include the purchase price, import
duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and any
directly attributable cost of preparing the asset
for its intended use.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value of the
asset at the date of acquisition.

The cost of an internally generated intangible
assel arising from the development phase of an
internal project which is capitalised includes
all directly attributable costs necessary Lo
create, produce, and prepare the assel o be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Management.

Other  development  expenditure  and
expenditure on research activitics, undertaken
with the prospect of gaining new technical
knowledge and understanding is expensed in

the income statement as and when incurred,

3.8.2 Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is
capitalised only when it increases the future

asset to which il relates.

383 Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition an intangible asset is
stated at its costs less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The useful economic life of an intangible asset
is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
over the useful coconomic life of the asset. The
amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting date. Changes in the expected
wseful life or the expected pattern of
eonsumption of future cconomic benefits
embodied in the asset is sccounted for by
changing the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting  estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the income statement,
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at
the cash-generating unit level.

The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable, If not, the

change in uselul life from indefinite to finite is

made on a prospective basis.
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384

3.9

Intangible assets recognised by the
Group
Computer software
All computer software cost incurred and
licensed for use by the Group, which does not
form an integral part of related hardware,
which can be clearly identified and reliably
measured with the probability of leading to
Ffuture economic benefits, are capitalised under
intangible assets. The Group amortises
computer software over period of 5 years.

Impairment - Non-financial assets
The camrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred lax assets are reviewed at cach
reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment, If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of
such assets are estimated,
An impairment loss is recognised il the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating  unil  exceeds its recoverable
amount.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable assct group that penerates cash
flows that are largely independent from other
asscts. Impairment losses are recognised in the
income slalement,
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-penerating units on  acquisition of
subsidiaries are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to

MUNICATION TECHNOLOG
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the umit, and then o reduce the camrying
amount of the other assets in the unit {or group
of units) on a pro rata basis,

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an assel or cash-
generating unit i5 the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
valuc in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax  discount rate that reflects current
markel assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific o the asset or
cash-generating unit.

39.7 Reversal of impairment

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer cxists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amounl. An
impairment loss (excluding goodwill impaired
previously) is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

depreciation  or

recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised

in the income statament.
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310 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities classified as current liabilities in the
statement of financial position are those which
fall due for payment on demand of the creditor
or within one year of the reporting date. Mon-
current liabilities are those balances that
become repayable after one year from the
reporting date.

All known liabilities have been sccounted for
in preparing the financial statements.

311 Provisions

Provisions are recogniscd when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past cvent, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required 1o seiile the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation,

When the Group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recogniscd as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in
the income statement net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that meflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific o the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision duc to the passage of time is

recognised as a finance cosL

5
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312 Employee benefits
3.12.1 Short-term employee benclits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expectled
to be paid in cash as ex-gratia in the short term,
if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service rendered by the employee, and the
obligation can be measured reliably.

3122 Defined contribation plan

A defined contribution plan is a  post-
employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays a fixed employee benefit
contribution into a separate entity and will
have no further legal or construclive
obligations to pay any additional amounts.
Obligations for contributions to a defined
contribution plan are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in the income
statement in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees.

3.12.3 Employee provident fund and Employee

trust fund
The Group contributcs a sum not less than
12% of the gross emoluments of employees
employed in Sei Lanka as provident fund
benefits and 3% as trust fund benefits,
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3124 Defined benefit plan — retiring gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a postemployment
benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan.

The liability recopnised in the statement of
financial position in respect of defined benefit
pluns is the present value of the defined benelit
obligation at the reporting date, The defined
benefit obligation is caleulated annually using
the projected unit credit methed by qualified
actuary as recommended by LKAS - 19, The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash flows using intercst rates that are
dencminated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms of
maturily approximating to the terms of the
liability.

Provision has been made in the financial
statements for retiring gratuities from the first
year of service for all employees.

However, according to the Payment of
Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability for
payment to an employee arises only after the
completion of 5 years continued service.

The liability is not externally funded.

Giroup recognizses all actoarial gains and losses
arising  from  defined benefit  plans
immediately in the statement of other

comprehensive income.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

In consultation with the Sri Lanka Accounting
and Auditing Standards Monitoring Board and

in amccordance with the requirements of
Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance LEAS-
20, the company recognized during the vear as
project
implementation and administration project
support  services as

income  and  the outlays  on
infrastructure  and
expenditure.

Grants  arc recognized where there s
reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions are
complied with. When the grant relates o an
expense item, it is recognized as income over
the period necessary to match the grant on a
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, it is set up as deferred income. Where
the company receives non-monetary grant, the
asset and that grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to the income stalement
over the expected wseful life of the relevant

asset by equal installments.

314 Onther

Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

3.15 Contingencies and capital commitments

Contingencies arc possible assets  or
obligations that arise from a past event and
would be confirmed only on the occurrence or
nonoccurrence  of uncertain  future  events,

which nat wholly within control of the Group.

|
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Commitments and Contingent liabilities are
disclosed in Mote 19 and 30 to the financial
statements.,

316 Related party transactions
Disclosure has been made in respect of the
transactions in which one party has the ability
to control or exercise significant infleence
over the linancial and operating policies and

decisions of the other, irespective of whether

a price is being charged.

317 FEvents occurring after the reporting date
All material post reporting date cvents have
been considercd and where appropriate
adjustments or disclosures have been made in
the respective notes o the financial
statements.

3.18 Going Concern

Although total liabilities exceeds fits total
assets by Rs | BR7.834007 as at 3lst
December 20019 there s no payables to
suppliers at the end of year 2020 due to
settlement of payables as at 317 December
2019 during the year 2020 out of funds
received from treasury . Therefore gquestion of
going concern will not arise at the end ol year
2019
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Liroup Comapuny
NOTE ih4 2010 2018 T} 2018
REVEML
Crramt Income = Treasury 1364940, 163 LRIy 263.019 1.330,263,430 LT 2RE 34
Crrant [neome - Other Gowvt Instilalsms 135.973,004 41,178,742 135.973,074 133,042,004
Dieberned Cirant loncoibe 201,767 206,340, 75) 47 M2 295, 076.497
1,501,126, M6 X, (Wi, 191 552 1Ai0.505, 706 2,700 306,855

As per the Revenue recognitbon policy stated in the notes fo the inmcial stsemeiitz, Grant inesme wis re=clussilied as
pevenue of the group and the entity and the ncome fiom non-grond scfivities sinbed previcusly uiser revenue was re=classified

as oler ficomee,

OTHER INCOME
Suisdry Income 11455 1% 9,547,028 11335242 6,783 8258
Wi Back - Cirant Payable 153,946,013 - 153,546,015 -
Temder Thicument Fees 4,00 19,1 64 {10 19, 0
165,465,205 18,160, (k2 P65 345,255 T, E15
FROJECT IMPLEMENTATION EXPENSES
Salories aml Wases FE 004,689 HIE, T, T26 202 063,737 200,552,675
BYOD Allpwanies A5G 230,332 LIFS A 930,332
ST Allewances B 2.0 40k 542 TH]
Inszrn Alhwanu: 44,585 541,553 19452 30,54
Chregriime 2560913 548761 2,560,413 MR
SialT Compeisation Payment IR A0 108, 00 IRZ.000 130K, O
Travelling Alkmunoes ThF ) 2544016 Tat. 00 | AR s
Retirement Bepetits Chligatioms
“Currend Serviee Ciost 4,432 504 20146, Tib Xl 413 1,310,337
«Imbemest (il 3 T3LATO - ERE RN kT .
Connectivity Expenses - (T2, 128) L .
Cormmuncation Expenses 1,165, 162.733 | 408, 105832 1065, 062, T3 1408195 832
Consuliuncy Expenses - Firm 170,392,762 15402440, 545 170,205,712 151443477
Consuleancy Fxpenses - ndivicsl 8320162 TL.O72,647 520,062 1172647
Advertising Expenses 34T AS GRIZ0TS 3047 495 0.590.523
Events & Seminars 50,264,374 B, 2 840, 503 0,864,178 65743473
Traiming Expeiccs 10, B 07 16.714,239 10,309,007 12984292
Pninfenmnee & Support Services 239,874,554 293,965,959 139.874,554 293,565,954
Fuel Expenses 2019124 2ABT, 1HG 219026 2AGT 184
Creerscas Travel Expenses 3532408 4,149,195 3 EALA08 A 140,195
Msalings Expenss 195,514 70,548 195,510 704,544
Drepreciation & Amorication 14,143,157 HE T8, 710 11,477,247 824,128
Brevalumtion Loss ! {Reversnl) (34,709 &1} I 23,7806, 20 (24,299, THT ) 133,786,206
De-necogition - of PFE 4, T20,HE5 - 4,720,883 g
Impairment of PPE 3,937,590 - 2,001,750 .
Aszets Transfer Govt entities™amsla 2619106 121 008650 2619, G [ 1 LR R
MY ol Assels Digposel Previons yenr 1626530 = = =
Write of - (iraml Receavable 14,509,774 - 14,509, T4 -
Printing O, 580 5,417,628 1,004, 385 32208
Courler Charpers 2H4.147 13211 24,747 13211
Travelling Expeises - Projec 3. HIE REY 2565801 3, HIE BRY 2565801
Minimienance sl Comnputer softwar: 167U} 2B065 504 1675920 2065504
Gonds & Fguipmeris 30,5404 M Tin R, 008 30,540,450 i, Bl B UI0H
Eqquipment Hiring Expenses 3,000 1,104,612 A0 I,104.412
Rafroslinsenl Expenses 36,687 S RI6 E36,6K7 358305
Prisliesssonal Foo 1562 101,484 1A62 111484
Miemhership & Annual Subserption 12, M3, 15 MEF 76430 12,403, LRS L T76 A3
Wieh Develogmenl Fxpenses 5,004, 253 11734878 5,004,285 11, 7HLETH
1968, 482,711 00,3 35 608 1.934,810,053 AL, T4, 623
14
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Group Company

2019 2018 09 2018
NOTE 07
PROJECT INFRASTRUCTURE & SUPPORT SERVICES
Telephone Charges 2,965,725 5,652,647 2,859,781 3,682,121
Compater Mainbenance 523,145 644,581 41705 488,875
Equipment Hiring Expenses 654 607 513,218 654,607 513,218
Sponsorships 618,767 160,40 618,767 160,000
Audit Fees 3,360,000 172,155 2,760,000 120,405
Medical Expenses 4,731 257,116 4,731 14,616
Insurance 6,456,068 11,502,790 5,714,402 L0, 930,069
Fent of Premisas 26,535,513 25,413,256 20,182,128 L5934, 106
Electricity 4,303 296 5,460,358 4,303,295 5469358
Becurity Service Charges 228,000 1,259,816 228,000 I 258,816
Secretarial Services 880,326 T34 42 1,719,826 495,379
Board Sitting Allowance THZ.000 2,213,000 72,000 2.213,000
Bank Charges 1,982,190 6,030,913 1,982, 1990 583,621
Courier 196,605 333357 196,615 323,357
Postage 16,790 B7.173 16,7540 78,990
Mewspapers & Periodicals 129,890 | 32,840 12% 8% 122,240
Toners & Cantridges 244,310 TI2,510 244510 T12,510
Refreshments 2,405,947 3,683.512 2,405,947 3.040, 269
Drrinking Water 197,818 338,121 148,06% 267,994
Cleaning Service 1L.231,737 1,932,670 1,231,737 1,932,670
Stationary 410,440 1,275,000 410,440 1.271,0140
Travelling - Forcign a8d, 587 2420675 G, 597 403,936
Travelling - Local AR5 478 5,368,212 3,398, 7% 5415705
Etaff Training 34,000 gt B J14, 00 28450
Staff Recruitment Expenses T2, 700 98,950 T42, 700 198,350
Wihicle Rent 8,330,100 7.930 500 B.331, 16 7530, 500
General Administration Expenses 636,838 1888014 614,973 1,764,927
Membership & Annual Subscription - 335261 - -
Legal Fees 457 854 637,130 457 854 637,130
Documents Archiving Expenses qo1,01% 917,512 009 B17,512
Pugyroll Processing Fea 248,577 1,034,816 145,931 049,623

70,940,074 £9,292,859 62,615,538 73,189,957

=1
5]
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ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PVT) LTD

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3158T DECEMBER 1019
{ALL FICURES ARE IN 5RI LANKAN RUPFEES)

NOTE 08
8.1 Gronp

Al Cost

Balance as at 01012019
Additions

Tramsfer to Rovaleation
Dizposals’ Transfers
Balnnee as st 31.12.201%

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 .01.201%
Charge for the Year
Disposals’ Transfers
Transfer (o Bevaluation
Balonce s at 31.12.201%

Met Book Value

82 Group

Al Valuation

Balance az at 01012019
Dre=recognition
Reovaluation
Re-classification
Impairment

Disposals’ Transfers
Balance as al 31.12,2009

Accumulated Depreciatbon
Baknce as at 01012019
Charge for the Year
Re-classification
Drg-recognition

[mipairment

Disposals’  Tromsfers
Balance as at 31122019

Mel Book Value

FROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Formniture & Computer Difice IcT Total
Filtings Hardware Equipment Infrastruciure
3 263,603 668,720 . 032,323
- 263,603 668,720 - 031,323
- 52,72 133,744 25302 211,767
- 52,721 133,744 25,302 211,767
- 210,583 534,976 {25,301) 720,556
Furniture & Compuler Difice ICT Total
Fittings Hardware Equipment Infrastrocture
19,306,018 24972085 5,245,839 - 49,523,942
{3,071,862) (3,304,948) {425,969) - (6,802,778)
1,230,761 3,740,320 DikE, 2659 20,866,304 26,745,654
. (9,233,606) - 8,233,696 -
(475,958) (2,957, 7600 (1488,7T78) S (4,922,496)
{2,924.278) {1,701,263) (GRZ,015) - (5, M7,555)
14,064,681 11,514,739 3,557,347 30,100,000 59,236,767
3861204 4,994,417 1,04%, 168 ; 9,904, THE
30065, 888 3,086 1932 1,026,867 6,045,302 13,234,990
. (1,846,739) - 1.546,73% -
(614,372) (60,9900 (85,194} - (1,360,556)
(95,192) (591,552) (297,756) - (954,499)
(584,856) {340.253) {136,403) - (1,061,511}
5,632,672 4,651 816 1,556,683 7,892,042 19,733,213
8,432,009 6,862,923 2,004,664 22,207 958 30,503,554

20
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ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2019
(ALL FIGURES ARE IN 5RI LANKAN RUFEES)

NOTE0$ PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

8.3 Company Furnitare &  Compufer & Office ICT Total
Fittings Sofiwire Equipment  Infrastruciure

At Cost

Balance us ot 01,01 ,2019 4 . " . .

Additions - 263,604 G6E, T20 126,512 1,058,835

Transfers- Inter company - (254,103 (668,720) - {922 823)

Disposals’ Transfers . - . - -

Teansfer to Revaluation - - - - -

Balance as af 31.12.201% - R L = 126,512 136,012

Accumulated Depreciation
Balemce asal (1.00.2019 - - = 2 2

Chitrge for the Year - [,200 - 25302 27,202
IMsposalal Transfers - - - L -
Tranafer to Revaluation - - . = =
Ralance as af 30L.12.201% = 1.0 - 25302 27,202
Net Book Yalue - 00 - 100,210 110G 810
Furnhiure & Compuier (Mice T
#.4 Company Fittings Hardware Equipment  Infrastraciure Total
At Valuntion
Balance as af 01012009 17,250,068 17,076,278 3.362.2% - 37,688,641
Dhe=recognition (3051,662) (2,530,833) (318,611) - (5,500, 1 (W)
Kevaluation 92,516 2408135 132,526 20,866,304 24,200, 781
Re-classification - {9,233 694) - G233 606 -
[mpairment (266,013) (1.430,288) (918,389 - (2.614,689)
Disposals! Transfers (2,895,178) {12,000) {366,705) - (3.273,543)
Balance as at 31122019 11,929,731 6,277,597 1,390,417 30,100,000 S0,09K, 744
Accamulated Depreciation
Balance as af #1.01.201% 3450,014 3415256 LT 454 = 7537, 728
Charge for the Year 2,571,249 1,732,246 404 548 6,045,302 10,753,647
Re-classification - {1,846,735%) - 1,844, 73% -
Dre-recognition (610,332) (506, 167) [63,722) . (L180221)
Impairment (53,203) (286,058) (183,678) 3 (512,938)
Disposuls’ Transfers L5T9,036) (24000 [73,341) - {(654,777)
Balance s al 31122019 4,778,692 2,500, 139 750,507 T.392,042 15,933,439
Met Book Yalue 7,151,039 3, 771458 1,134 850 22,207,958 34,265,305
|
.a-l-j-'-"'l.:.- ]
VS -\
!*I I'\I«: ) 13
'\.__ '.. -.,i-;c.:___:__:‘;—?‘d':ﬁ-?_.l
w1
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ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (FVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR THE YEAR EXDED MST DECEMBER 1%
[ALL FIGURES ARE BN 581 LANKAN RUPEES)

NOTE #9_ INTANGIBLE ASSETS
w1 Girsup
Halunes oy al Disgusal of Ihis st le Transfer in Balance as ad
e worzegy  diitions Sbidary Trnnsfers  Valustion 31111019
Sollware and Palslicaiisns . K F P : 3
{wted I F Dnlsnce s s Charge for Mgl ol s poesa s Transfer v Rakinge as o
i e .84, 113 the: Year i bskdary Trunsfers Walualin piNE% ]
Software and Poblications - - - - = .
Currying Value 2% Lk
Sultwars aml Prblicalins = =
2.2 Gromp
Balane: a5 s Transfer ; Tspesal of s pocals’ Balance ns ui
e MLOL201%  fromCost  evmhustion Subskdary Transfess 31122009
Safware piad Publicatices 1 4B 0N 2 E . 2 3 ARE 00D
J4H2IHE) - - = * 3 ARLS00
Balana: as & Charge for Trensfer 1o Deizpesnl of D v’ Brluwes as mi
ASTURUI I Sapsscivm SLOLIOIY _ the Yeur Valemtivn Subsilary  Tramsfers  3LILI0IY
Solffwes and Puhlications 0, A0 G0 800 - . 2 1,392 &0
G0 i, R - - . 139151
Carryisgg Vale: 2B E %
Sofiware and Publicalions 2, 7ES 600 e R 1]
3, TR 608 L6y, 1l
.3 Campany
alance as #i Dispesal of [Hagasals’ Transfer ta Halani: a3 at
Arfon e I Tromtiors Vabustion 31123019
Softwere and Publicsliore - . - - - *
Halmmo: a2 i Charge for Tispesal of Disgmanlss ‘Frunsfer b Balance == at
Aetuminiees Drpresintinn L1301 thee Ve Subsidary Urasafers  Vabwation 31122019
Sadiware and Puhliomions - - - . = H
Carrying Yaloe 18R %
Soffiware and Publications = .
94 Campany
. Ml 2 al Trawclir Tiapraad of Thiagranalal Halance &= at
AL Finaties B2 fram Cast Reviatioy Subsidary “Tramsfers 3L1L2M9
Swalivame aid Puhlicatinms JARZ QD - - 3442 00
3 AN 0D 5 i - . 3442080
Healanicy b ai Charge for Transfer b2 Dispusad olf Thispsslar Ualnnee &s at
Accumuinted Deprecistion WLA1201% the Vear Waluation Subsidary I'runsfers M2
Sofiweee and Pulilisatinme AR A £, 400 1,283, R
i A L, A0 - - . 1,702 B
Carryimg Yales L] 1%
Sofrwere ond Publicotions 2, 7REAUD 20, 5
3, 7RE500 1L, 1l
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ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT ST DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FIGURES ARE N SRI LANEAN RUFEES)

Group - Company
NOTE 10 FIE] ] my IE}
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Invessiments in Subsidipries (14,1 L] 14
([IN]
Invesdments in Subsidiaries
Lanka Ciovermmend Infoomation nfrasimecure (P Lid 14} 1]
NOTE LI = : . i
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Beveivalis 26,00{,000 19,504,774 346, CHI0, T 15,504,774
Refimdable Deposdis 1,388,750 2,379,750 1,386,000 2,374, D6}
Genernl Advances 4497 450 40214 AT, 4540 409,214
Trepagmens 2,503,955 - 2,730,495 -
30,391,155 11,193,738 30,113,045 TZ1,259,58K
NOTE 12
NI CASTE LIVALENITS
Cash af Bank 354,732,139 258,999,254 254,591,272 255975336
154,732, 158,900,254 734,501,272 m.ﬁ'&%s
NUTE 13
STATED CAFITAL
Fullly Paid Orelinoary Shares i i} gl}_ 0
20 P Il 10
NOTE 14
RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Hakanie & at (1ed Jamuary 33,523,364 X1,755.902 F319,437 34, 145 400
Imierest Cosi for e perkod 375,570 3,445,138
Current Servine Cost for the perod 4,430 504 2,146,766 3,661,415 1,310,337
Dispoanl (1,E38.002)
fr— (7,924,000 19,140,300) (7.924,0010) {9, 140,300
Actuarial (GaiyLoss oo PY-DEO (3,583,977 (3308 6lRh
Badance ns at 315t December 30,579,463 33,923,366 17,193,382 31319437

Deseription of the valustion method wed and (e Eformatbon absut the valner

LEAS 1% "Emploves Benefis" requires the wie of aciuarial iclniques to moke g reliable estimate of the amount of setirement benefit thai
employees have eamed in return fr their service in the current and prsor periods and discount that benefit using the Projected Uit Credit hMethod in
ordeer to determine the present value of the retirement benefit obligations asd the current service cost, This requires = entily Lo determing how nmuch
benefit i atribuesble o the curment and prior periods and o make estimate: aboul demographic and financinl varinbles thit will mfluence the cost of
ihe henefil
The actuarial vahuation hes been careaed out by Actumial & Monagement Consuhints (Pwi) Lul
The following key nssumptions wene made i arriving the sbove figure,

Momnlity : A 19#6770 Momnliny Tahle

Diisahibity @ 10%% of bdoecality

Stall Turmover Fates @ 5.0% acroas the boord up o e 49 and thereafber dero.

Horminl Refirement Age : &0 years {The employes who are aged over the specifizd relirement ape liave been assumed (o retire an their

regpective pext birthdny)

Salary Escalotion Bates : Basic Salory - 10.00% pa Increment e duc in Jananry every sear
Retiring Craiuity Fommuks : Half month's Salary for each completed yvear of service: for those with nl Jesst 5 years service.

MNOTE IS

|!EEE RED LIABILITY FOR GRANT ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ

Amourni Recopnized ns at 05t Junaary - 296, 469410 - 195 976,497
Irrior Year Adjusiment
Habmcs EI{IIEIJIlua.r:.' - 294 6 4 10 - 05 976497
I Delared nimngliu: Y¥ear o33 3N " 136,012 -
Addjustmenis - Defemed Girant Fayahle - - -

Misposal {1154659)

Tramsherred ta oo Slalems (L7667 (296,349.751) %,z{m (295 976,447}
Balamie 25 a1 3188 Deccmber T0,5% . 108,510 -




ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PVT) LTD

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A5 AT 315T DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FIGURES ARE IN 5RI LANKAN RUPEES)

Group Company

NOTE 16 2019 2018 2019 2018
OTHER PAY ARLES
Credilors 028,626,928 1,544,330, 166 2,028,626,928 1,544,330, 166
Other Project - Payables 61,484 824 179,000,229 61,484,824 179,000,229
Other Pavables & Accrued Expenses 8,821,123 1.717.213 1,371,391 1717213

1,098,932,875 1,725,047,607 2,007 483,143 1,725,047,607
NOTE 17

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

17.1
Details of significant related party disclosares are as follows:

Related Party  Computer Emergency Besdiness Team (Pvi) Lid
Relationship  Subsidiwry (Disposed during 20018

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Mature of Transaction
Balomce as af O1st January 40215 928 40,215,928 40,215,928
Expenses bome by the company - -
[rsposal 40,215,928
Amount received from the related party = -
Bulemce as b 3158 July 40,215,928 40,215,928 40,215,928 A, 215,928
Kelated Parly  Lanka Governmeant Information Infrastructure (Pvt) Lid
Retntionship  Subsidiary Company
2019 2018
Matare of Transaction —
Ralance as at §f st January 43245 879 34,963,450
Fxpenses bome by the company 751,406 8,286,420
Amount received from the releted party o =
Balance as at 3 15t December 44 001,286 43,249, 879
40,215,928 40,215,928 84,217,213 83,465,807
17.2 Trunsuctions with key management personnel of the company.
According to LKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures', Key Management personnel are those having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.
Grogp Company
2019 iR 2019 2018
Key Management Personnel Compensation
Short-Term Emplovee Bencfits - = - -
F -'-.:- : / ..-{':‘:--“': :
74 [\_ P} {55 W%: ._-

R KRR )
s ™ )
. -{x_ﬁ_’_ﬂ_ )

=
3 A
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ICT AGENCY OF SRI LANKA (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 15T DECEMBER 2019
(ALL FIGLURES ARE IN 5RI LANKAN RUFEES)

MOTE 18
EVENTS OCCURING AFFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has been no material event occurred after the reporting date that require
adjustments to or disclosure of the financial statements.

NOTE 19
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

19.1 Commitmenis
Capital Commitment as at the reporting date Rs. 1,718,023,288.99

9.2 Contingencies

Lepal eases
Case reference Contingent Linbility
LT3 5620107 Reinstatement of service with salary arrcars, Legal Fees & Any other

Compensations decided by the LT

There was no other significant contingent lability as at reporting date.

*@z
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| Send dvemac e |
wongy B | CAMIEAGUOI01903 2 sy o | £2% 135 January 2022
The Chairman,

Lanka Government Information Infrastructure (Private) Limited

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements and Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements of the Lanka Government Information Infrastructure (Private)
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2019 in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit
Act, No, 19 of 2018,

The above mentioned report is sent herewith,

(momny
W.P.C Wickramaratne

Audilor General

Copies: 01, Secretary, Ministry of Technology

UZ. Secretary, Ministry of Finance
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Chairman

Lanka Government Information Infrastructure (Private) Limited

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements and Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements of the Lanka Government Information Infrastructure
{Private) Limited for the year ended 31 December 2019 in terms of Section 12 of the
Mational Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

1. Financial Statements
1.1 Disclaimer of Opinion

The audit of the financial statements ol the Lanka Government Information Infrastructure
{Private) Limited {“Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2019 compnsing the slalement
ol linancial position as al 31 December 2019 and the statement of profit and loss statement,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, was carried
out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with provisions of the National
Audit Act No., 19 ol 2018, My report to Parliament in pursuance of provisions in Article 154
{6) of the Constitution will be tabled in due course.

I do nol express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the Company.
Because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of my report. | have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to

provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

e 00 L allade m, Srlbnaoipds. By ppenati Eee Moo Doradtpes afpf, wipsgreibsss. Besles Ho. W7 b leers B @, Bef areee P, bii Lanka
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1.2 Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

{a) All fixed assets of the Company had been revalued for Rs. 11,601,568 in the year 2017
and re-valued assets amounting to Rs.2,307,807 and related accumulated depreciation
amount of Rs, 461,561 had been removed from financial statements during the year
under review without proper approval. Further, the net book value of the respective
assets amounting to Rs. 1,846,245 had been debited to the profit and loss account during

the year under review.

(k) The assets valued al Rs2,033,673 which were sold in the year 2017, and s
accumulated depreciation amounting to Rs. 406,735 had been removed from the
financial slatements of the year under review without adjusting in the year 2017,
Further, a sum of Rs.1,626,938 had been erroneously charged as loss on disposal of
assels Lo the prolil and loss account instead of charging a sum of Bs. 1,269,838 dunng
the year under review. As a result, net surplus for the year under review had been
decreased by Rs. 357,100, Further, proceeds on disposed asscts amounting to
Rs.357,100 had been erronecusly recognized as sundry income in the year 2017.

(c)  Without an approval, the assets valued at Rs. 901,673 in the year 2018 and the related
depreciation of Rs. 180,335 had been removed from the financial statements in year
2019.

1.3 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Siatements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determine is necessary to enable the preparation ol [inancial statements thal are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

P'age 2 of 4
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial

reporting process.

As per Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the Company is required lo
maintain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to enable
annual and periodic f[inancial stalements to be prepared of the Company.

1.4 Awuditor’s Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements

My responsibility is to conduet an audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the
mallers deseribed in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section, | was not able to obtain

sufficient appropriate to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.
r A Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 and Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007 include specific

provisions for following requirements.

. I have nol obtained all the information and explanation that considered necessary for
the purpose of audit and I was unable to determine whether proper accounting records
have been kept by the Company, as per the requirement of section 163 (1) (d) of the
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007 and section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of
2018,

. Except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion,
the financial statements of the Company comply with the requirement of section 151 of
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007,

. The financial stalements presented is consistent with the preceding year as per the
requirement of section & (1) (d} (iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 ol 2018.

. The financial statements presented includes all the recommendations made by me in the

previous year as per the requirement of section 6 (1) (d) (iv) of the National Audit Act,
Mo, 19 of 2018,

Page 3 of 4
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Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained which limited to matters that are

material, nothing has come (o my altention;

# o state that any member of the governing body ol the Company has any direct or
indirect interest in any contract entered into by the Company which are oul of the
normal course of business as per the requirement of section 12 (d) of the National Audit
Act, No. 19 of 2018,

. o state thal the Company has not complied with any applicable written law, general
and special directions issued by the governing body of the Company as per the
requirement of section 12 () of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018,

- o state thal the Company has not performed according to its powers, functions amd
duties as per the requirement of section 12 (g) of the MNational Audit Act, No. 19 of

2018,

» to state thal the resources of the Company had not been procured and utihzed
economically, efficiently and effectively within the time frames and in compliance with
the applicable laws as per the requirement of section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act,
No. 19 of 2018.

e

>
W.P.C. kramaratne

Auditor General

Page 4 of 4
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Audited Financial Statements - LGlII

LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FICURES ARE IN SRI LANKAN RUPEES)

Revenne

(zrant Income

Expenses

Project Implementation Expenses
Project Infrastructure & Support Services

Met Surplos on Grant Activities

Met Surplus/(Deficit) on Non-Grant Activities

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Met SurploafDeficit) for the Period

Other Comprehensive Income
Items not to be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Actparial Loss on Delined Benefit Plans
Itevabuation of Property Plant and Equipment
Income Tax Effect on Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive Loss for the Period

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period

2019 2018
119,950 -
34,560,300 33,112,670
(33,778.778) (27.916.143)
(8,218,436) {7,329,854)

(7,436,914) -
(7,316,964) (2,133,327)
2019 2018
(7,310,964) (2,133.327)
275,369
1,724,535 11,601,568
1,50 G0 11,601,568
(5,317,060) 9468 241

The aceounting policies and notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Financlal Statements 2019




LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) L'TD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 35T DECEMBER 2019
(ALL FIGURES ARE IN SRl LANKAN RUPEES)
NOTE 2019 2018
Assets
Emj.:urrl:nt Azssels
Property, Plant & Equipment 8 5.976,507 9,468,241
5,976,507 0468241
Current Assels
Other Receivables o 2T1.210 3,750
Amounts Due from Related Party 10 44,001,286  43,249879
Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 140,868 20,918
44,419,363 43,274,547
Tuotal Assets 50,395,871 __53,743.733
Equity & Liabilities
Slated Capital 12 10 10
Revaluation Reserve 13,326,103 11,601,568
Accumulated Surplus 31,495,685 38,537,281
Total Equity 44,821,799 50,138,850
Non-Current Liabilities
Retirement Benefit 13 3,386,081 2,603,929
Deferred Revenue for Grant Assets 14 738,258 -
4,124,339 2,603 929
Current Liabilitics
Trade & Other Payables 15 1,449 732 -
Amounts Due to Related Party 10 = 2
1,449,732 :
Total Equity & Liahilities 50,395,871 52,742,788

The Accounting Policics and notes on pages 5 through 19 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
These Financial Statements an: in umnplimme with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007,
I-Enld o nee

The board of direclors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
Sigmied and on behall of the board by,

‘\—1 o LA w\ :

s -
Elﬂirmml Director

20 May 2021

Financial Statemenis 20159
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 201%
(ALL FIGURES ARE IM SRI LANKAN RUPEES)

Stated Revaloation  Aceumulbated

Capital  Reserve Surplus Totsl
As at 31st December 2017 10 . 40,670,608 40,313,518
Surplus for the Year e 11,601,568 (2,133,327 9.468.241
As at 31st December 2018 10 11,601,568 38,537,281 49,781,759
Total Comprehensive Income - 1,724,535 (7.041,595)  (5.317,060)
As at 315t December 2019 10 13,326,103 31495686 44,464,699

The accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FIGURES ARE IN SRI LANKAN RUPEES)

Mote 2019 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year (7,316,964) (2,133,327
Adjustments for;
Prior ¥ecar Adjustment - -
Depreciation & Amortization 2,665,908 2,367,060
Retirement Benefits - Current Service Cost 771,089 B36.420
Retirement Benelils - Interest Cost 286,432 -
Retirement Benefits - Paid - -
MBY of Assets Disposed Previous year 1,626,938 =
Impairment 1,846,245 -
Deferred Revenue for Grant Asscts Adjustment 738,258 (233,733)
Wrile off-Backs -

617,907 836,420
Waorking Capital Changes
Decreasef{Increase) in Other Receivables (273,460) -
Decreasef{Increase) in Other Payables 1,449,732 -
Decrease/(Increase)in Related Parties (751,406)  (8,286,429)
Met Cash Generated (Used in) from Operating Activities 1,042,773 (7. A450,000)
Cash Flows rom Investing Activities
Additions to Property, Plant & Equipment (922,821) -
Grant Received (Income Deferred during the Year) - -
Met Cash Generated (Used in) from [nvesting Activitics (922.823) -
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the Year 20918 7470918
Met Cash Generated (Used in) during the Year 119,950 (7,450,000}
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the End of the Year 140,868 20,918
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

1
1.1

1.2

1.3

CORPORATE INFORMATION
General

Lanka Government Information Infrastructure
{(Pv1) Lid. (LGU) was established under
company’s act of 2007 in July 2011 and
operations by this subsidiary started in 2012,
The immediate parent of the company is The
Information & Communication Technology
Agency of Sri Lanka (Private) Limited (ICTA).
The registered office of the Company is situated
at Mo 16024, Kirimandala Mawatha, Colombo
05,

Principal Activities and Nature of
Operations

The company Operates and development of the
Lanka Government Network (LGN) which is
the highly available, secure and reliable
underlying information infrastructure backbone
that connects government organizations of the
Government of Sri Lanka. LGII also facilitates
many other IT related services to Sri Lanka

gowvernment.

Date of Authorization for Issue
The financial statements of Lanka Government
Information Infrastructure (Pvi) Lid For the
year ended December 31, 2019 was authorized
for issuance by the directors on 20™ May 2021.

VERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCT

2

21
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial stalements which have been
presented in S Lankan Rupees have been
prepared on a historical cost basis.

Statement of Complinnee

Financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (herein referred to as
SLFRSs/LKASs) effective from 1st January
2012, laid down by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL) and the
requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of
2007,

2.2  Responsibility for financial statements

2.3

The Board of Directors of the Company is

responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the Mnancial statements.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except assets recorded
in Property, Plant & Equipment which arc
measured at valuation less depreciation and the
retirement bencfit obligations are measured at
the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as explained in the respective notes
to the financial statements. These financial
statements have been preparcd on the basis that
the Company and the Company would continue

as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

o




LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

2.4  Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri
Lankan Rupees, which is the company's

functional and presentation currency.

Use of Estimates & Judgments and
assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards require management o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affcct the application ol accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

income and expenses.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed (o be reasonable
under the circumslances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about
the carrying amount of assets and liabilitics that
are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions arc
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates arc recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised, if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Information about significant arcas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the

most  significant cffcct on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements, is slated
hesloww:

Fair value of non-financial assels

The fair value used by the Company in the
measurement of non-financial assets is based
on the presumption that the transaction Lo sell
the asset or transfer the liability lakes place
gither in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market
in thc most advanlageous market that is
accessible by the Company for the asset or
liahility The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would act in their market
participant’s ability to generate economic
benelits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data arc available Lo measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of

uncbservable inputs.

252 Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimation of the
useful lives of depreciablc assets al esch
reporting date based on the expected utility of
the assels, Uncertainties in these cstimates

relate to lechnical obsolescence that may

A\ _HH
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

change the useful life of certain property, plant

and equipment.

253 Defined benefit obligation
Management's estimale of the defined benefit
obligation is based on a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as mortality
rates, discount rale and anticipation of future
salary  increases.  Variation in  these
assumptions may significantly impact the
defined benefit obligation amount and the
annual defined benefit cxpense.

2,54  Fair valoe of linancial instruments
Management applies valuation techniques to
determine  the [air wvalue of financial
instruments where active market quotes are
not available. This requires management to
develop estimates and assumptions based on
market inputs, using observable data that
market participants would use in pricing the
instrument. Where such data is not ohservable,
management uscs its best estimate. Eslimated
fair values of financial inslruments may vary
from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting
date,

255 Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting
policies and disclosures require measurement
of fair valees, for both financial and non-

financial assets and liabilities.

2.6

2.7

31

Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Company's  Awdit Commiltee.  When
measuring the fair valee of an asset or a
liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible.

Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is
presented  separately  in the  financial
statemnents. Items of dissimilar nature or
function are presented separately unless they

are immaterial,

Comparative Information
The accounting policics have been consistently
applied by the Company. Previous year’s
figures and phrases have been re-arranged

wherever nccessary, to conform 1o the current

year's presentation.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements are presented in Sri
Lankan Rupees, which is the company’s
functional and  presentation  currency.
Transactions in forcign currencies are initially
recorded at the functional currency rate ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monitory assets
and liabilities denominated in forcign
currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the
Statement of Financial Position, All differences
are taken to Statement of Comprehensive

Financial Slat::_r'nc_!_l_t-'t_t:'_'r-"zfl'!?
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

Income. MWon- monetary  items  that  are
measurcd in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates
as at dates of the initial translations. Non-
monetary ilems measured at fair value in a
foreign  currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value

was determined,

rther Receivables
Other Receivables and duwes from related
Parties are recognized at Cost.

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents are cash in hand,
demand deposits and short-term highly liguid
investments, readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk

of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash
and cash cquivalents consist of cash in hand and
deposits in banks net of outstanding bank
overdrafis. Investment with short maturities i.e.
three months or less from the date of acquisition
is also treated as cash equivalents.

Property, plant and equipment

341 Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment other
than land and buildings, are measured al cost

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to working condition for its intended use. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials, direct labour and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
working condition for its intended use, and
borrowing costs if the recognition criteria arc

melL

This also includes cost of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring them in the
site on which they are located,

All items of property, plant and equipment are
recognised initially at cost and subsequently at

cost or at valuation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of each

reporling period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of assets arc recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in the income statement,
in which case the increase is credited to the

income statement to the extent of the decrease

previously expensed.

o]
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
NOTES TOTHE ANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

A decrease in the carrying amount arising on a
revaluation of land and buildings are
recognised in the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the
property’s revaluation reserve relating to a

previous revaluation of the same assets.

Upon disposal, any related revaluation reserve
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained earnings and is not taken into account

in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal.

The details of revaluation of asscts arc
disclosed in note 08 to the financial statements.

34.2 Significant components of property

plant and equipment
When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives than the
underlying assel, they are identified and
accounted separately as major components of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated
separately based on their useful life.

34.3 Subseguent cost

The Company recognises in the camying
amount of property, plant and cquipment the
cost of replacing a part of an item, when il is
probable that the future economic benefits
embodied in the item will low to the Company
and the cost of the ilem can be measured
reliably. The carrying amounts of the parts that
are replaced are recognised from the cost of the
assel. The cost of day-to-day servicing of

property, plant and equipment are recognised in

the income statement as and when incurred.

344 Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost ol an asset less

its residual value,

Depreciation is recognised in the income
staterment on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of each component of an

item of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is
available for use and ceases at the earlier of the
date that the asset is classified as held for sale
or on the date that the asset is disposed.

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives unless it
is rcasonably ceriain that the Company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

The estimated uselul lives of property plant and
equipment are as follows:

Furniture Fillings 3 years
Office Equipment 3 years
Computer Hardware 3 years

The cost of replacement of components of
assets recognised in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is depreciated
over the bulance useful life of the asset.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and the

residual values are reviewed at each reporting




LANKA GOYERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
NOTES HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

345  De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no firture cconomic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. The pain
or loss arising from de-recognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included in

profit or loss when item is de-recognised.

Leases

351 Finance leases

Leases in terms of which the Company
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases.
On initial recognition, the leased assets under
property, plant and equipment, is measured at
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and the present valee of minimum lease
pRyments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the assel is
accounted for in accordance with  the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Minimum lease payments under finance leases
are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability,
The finance expense is allocated to each
period during the lease term so a5 o produce
a constanl periodic rate interest on the

remaining balance of the liability.

352 Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership over the assets are classified as

10

operating leases. Payments under operaling
leases are recognised as an expensc in the
ineoume statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease or any other basis more
representative of the time pattern of the
benefits derived from the lease.

The initial cost of acquiring a leasehold
property treated as an operating lease is
recognised as a non-current asset and is
amortised over the period of the lease in
accordance with the pattern of benefits
expected to be derived from the lease. The
carrying amount of leasehold property is tested

for impairment annually.

Intangible assets
Imitial Recognition and measurement

The Company recognises intangible assets if it
i5 probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the assct will
Mlow to the entity and the cost of the assct can
be measured reliably,
Separately acquired intangible assets are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of such scparately acquired intangible
assets include the purchase price, Import
duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and any
directly attributable cost of preparing the assel
for its intended use.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value of the

assel at the date of acquisition.

Financial Statements 2019
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

The cost of an internally generated intangible
asset arising from the development phase of an
internal project which is capitalised includes
all directly atiributable costs necessary fto
create, produce, and prepare the asset to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Management.

Oiher  development  expendifure  and
expenditure on research activities, undertaken
with the prospect of gaining new technical
knowledge and understanding is expensed in

the income statement as and when incurred.

3.6.2  Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is
capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific
assed o which it relates.

363 Subsequent measurement

Afier initial recognition an intangible asset is
stated at its costs loss any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impainment
losses.

The useful economic life of an intangible assct
is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
over the useful economic life of the asset. The
amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting date. Changes in the expecled
useful life or the cxpeeted pattern of

consumption of future economic benefits

embodied in the asset is accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting  estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the income statement.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are not amortised, but arc tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at
the cash-generating unit lovel.

The assessment of indcfinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is

made on a prospective basis.

364 Intangible assets recognised by the

3.7

Company

Computer software

All computer software cost incurred and
licensed for use by the Company, which does
not form an integral part of related hardware,
which can be clearly identified and rcliably
measured with the probability of leading to
future cconomic benefits, are capitalised under
intangible assets. The Company amortises
computer software over period of 5 years.

Impairment — Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such

EEN
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

indication exists, the recoverable amounts of
such assets are estimated,

An impairment loss is rccognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
excceds

generating  unit its recoverable
amount.

A cash-gencrating unit is the smallest
identifiable asset Company that generates cash
flows that are largely independent from other
assels. Impairment losses are recognised in the
income statement.

Impairment losses recogniscd in respect of
cash-generating units on  acquisition of
subsidiaries are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit, and then to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assels in the unit {or

Company of units) on a pro rata basis.

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing,
value in use, the cstimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
markel assessments of the time walue of
money and the risks specific to the assel or

cash-gencrating unit.

3.7.2  Reversal of impairment

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no

12

3.8

39

longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss (excluding goodwill impaired
previously) is reversed only Lo the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined,
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised

net of depreciation or

i the income statement.

Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities classified as current liabilities in the
statement of financial position are those which
fall due for payment on demand of the creditor
or within one year of the reporting date. Mon-
current liabilities are those balances that
become repayable after one year from the
reporting date.

All known liabilitics have been accounted for

in preparing the financial statements.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a

provision to be reimbursed, for example, under

Financial Shtcn@mﬁji?ﬁﬁ'
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recopnised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in
the income statement net  of  any
reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax  rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is

recognised as a finance cost.

L10  Employee benefits
3.10.1 Short-term employee henefits

Shori-term employee benefit obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid in cash as ex-gratia in the short term,
if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
resull of past service rendered by the
employee, and the obligation can be measured
reliably.

2102 Defined contribution plan

A defined contrbution plan s a post-
employment benefit plan under which an
benefit
contribution into a separate entity and will
further legal
obligations to pay any additional amounis.

enlity pays a fixed employee

have no or  constructive

13

Obligations for contributions to a defined
contribution plan are recognised as an
employee bencfit cxpense in the income
statement in the periods during which services
are rendered by employees.

3103 Employee provident fund and Employee

trust fund
The Company contributes a sum not less than
12% of the gross emoluments of employees
employed in Sri Lanka as provident fund
benefits and 3% as trust fund benelits.

3104 Defincd beaefit plan - retiring gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a postemployment
benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan.

The liability recognised in the statement of
linancial position in respect of defined benefit
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the reporting date. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually using
the projected unit credit method by qualified
actuary as recommended by LKAS - 19, The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
fiture cash flows using interest rates that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms of
malurily approximating to the terms of the
liability.

Provision has boen made in the [fnancial
statements for retiring gratuities from the fiest
year of service for all employees.

# Financial Ertﬂ'tﬂﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬂm



LANKA GOVERNMENT IM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended 31 December 2019

However, according to the Payment of
Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability for
payment to an employee arises only after the
completion of 5 years continued service,

The liability is not externally funded.
Company recognises all actuarial gains and
losses arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in the statement of other

comprehensive income,

3.11 Revenue Recognition

In consultation with the Sri Lanka Accounting
and Auditing Standards Monitoring Board and
in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance LKAS-
20, the company recognized during the year as
income and the outlays on project
implementation and administration project
infrastructure  and  support services as
expenditure,

Grants are recognized where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions are
complied with, When the grant relates to an
cxpense item, it is recognized as income over
the perind necessary to match the grant on a
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, it is set up as deferred income. Where
the company receives non-monetary grant, the
asset and that grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to the income statcment

N INFRASTRUCTURE (PYT

over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal installments.

3.12 Other

Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

3.13 Contingencies and capital commitments

Contingencies  are  possible  assets  or
obligations that arise from a past event and
would be confirmed only on the occurrence or
nonoccurrence of uncertain  future evenlts,
which not wholly within control of the
Company.

Commitments and Contingent liabilities are
disclosed in Note 19 and 30 to the financial
statemenits.

3.14 Related party transactions

Disclosure has been made in respect of the
tranzactions in which one party has the ability
to control or exercise significant influcnce
over the financial and operating policies and
decisions of the other, irespective of whether
a price is being charged.

3.15 Ewvents occurring after the reporting date

All material post reporting date cvents have
been considered and where appropriate
adjustments or disclosures have been made in

the respective notes to  the [inancial
statcments.

Financial Statements IﬂT‘;F '
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FIGURES ARE IN SRI LANKAN RUPEES)

2019 2018
MNOTEQ GRANT INCOME
Grant Income - Treasury 14,375,735 I2.878,937
Dreferred Grant Income 184,565 233,733

34,560,300 33,112,670

NOTEDS REVENUE
Sundry Income 119,950 -
119,950 -
As per the Revenue recornition policy stated in the notes to the Anancial statements, Granl income was re-classified as
revenue of the group and the entity and the income from non-grant activities stated previously under revenue was re-
classified as other income,

NOTEDs FPROJECT IMPLEMENTATION EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages 26,030,932 24,391,817
Intern Allowanee 445,133 230,887
Provision for Gratuity 771,089 836,429
Interest - Retirement Benefits Obligations 286432 -
IT Equipment Maintenance 10, 100 89,950
MBY of Assets Disposcd Previous year - | 1,626,938 - .
Impairment 1,846,245
Depreciation & Amortization 2,665,908 2,367,060

33,778,778 27,016,143

2019 2018
NOTEOT PROJECT INFRASTRUCTURE & SUPPORT SERVICES

Telephone Charges 105,944 61,277
Audit Fees A0, 000 25,875
Insurance 741,667 72720
Rent of Premises 6,353,385 6,353,385
Repairs & Maintenance 21,866 17,489
Payroll Processing Fee G8.646 85,193
Travelling - Local &6,682 -
Stationary & Printing - 4,000
Meals & Refreshments Expenses - 10,824
Professional Charges | 60,500 157,000
Mewspapers & Periodicals - 1,750
Deinking Water 49,746 40,340

18436 7,329,854

15
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LANKA GOYERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 35T DECEMBER 2019

{ALL FIGURES ARE IN SRI LANKAN RUFEES)

NOTE 08

B0 Company

At Cost

Balance as at 01012019
Additiong.

Drizposals’ Transfers
Trunsfer to Revaluation
Balance a5 at 31.12.201%

Accomulated Depreciation
Balance ws at 01.01.201%
Charge for the Year
Dizposals’ Transfers
Transfer to Revaluation
Balance as at 31.12.201%

Met Book Yaloe

3.2 Company

At Valuation

Balance as af 01012019
Dre-recopmition
Revaluation

Impairment

Disposals’ Transfers
Balanece as at 31. 12,2009

Accumulated Depreciation
Balomce ns o 00,000,200
Charge for the Year
De-recognition

Impairment

Disposals! Transfers
Balunceas at 31.12,2019

Met Book Yalue

Furniture & Computer & Office IcT Balance as ot
Fittinps Sofiware  Equipment Infrastructure  3L12.2019
- 254,103 668,720 - 922,823
- 254,103 668,720 - 9212823
50,821 133,744 . 184,565
- 50,821 133,744 - 184,565
- 203,253 534,976 E 738,358
Furmiture & Computer Office ICT Balance as at
Fittings Equipment Infrastruciure  31.12.2019%
2,055,950 7895808 1,883,544 - 11,835,301 °
(20,200% (774,115}  (107,358) = {901,573 .
338,245 1,332,185 775,443 - 2445873
(200945) (1,527,473}  (570,389) - {2,307 ,807)
{29,100y  (1,689.263)  (315,310) - (2,033,673}
2,134,950 5,237,143 1,665,930 - 0,035,023
411,190 1,579,162 376,700 - 2,367,060
494,630 1,364,686 62201857 - 248134 %
{4.,040) {154,823) (21,472) - (180,335) '
(41.989) (3054951 (114,078) - “{461,561) !
{5,820) {337,853) (63,062) - (406,735)
R53,950 2,145,678 800,116 - 3,799,774
1,280,970 3,091,465  BoS8ld - 5,238,249
I6

o
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (FVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT ST DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FIGURES ARE IN SRI LANKAN RUPEES)

1019 2018
MOTE M OTHER RECEIVABLES
Cirand Receivahle - -
Heczivables - -
Irepayments XT3.460 =
Diepaaits 3,750 3,750
ATT,2I0 3,750

NOTE 1 AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTY
ICT Apency of Sri Lanka (Pvi) Led. 44,001 286 42, 244879
44,001,286 43,249 579

NOTE 11 CA% ASH EQUIVALENTS
Cazh at Bank 140 868 20,918
140,868 20,08
NOTE 13 STATED CAFITAL
Fully Paid Ordinary Shares 10 n
[{1] 1]

MOTE 13 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Balance as ot 015t Innuary 2,603,925 1,767,500
Current Service Cost for the period 771,088 836429
Interest Cost for the period 286,432 -
Paymenls - -
Aciuarial (ClamnyLoss on FY-DEO (275,369 -
Piakance as al 314t December 5586081 2,605,929

Deseriptlon of the valaation method vsed and the information abowt the volwer

LEAS 19 "Emphoyee Demefils” requires Ube use of actuarial sechmiques Lo make a relialde estimate of e amount of
retiremnent benefit el employoss have earmed in nelem for thelr seevice in the canmenl and prior peniods and discount that
benelil ming the Projected Unit Crodit Method in onder 1o determing the presest value of the retirement benefit
ablsgatems sl the currenl servies cosd, This reguires am enlity to determing how much benefit is atiribuiable o the
currenl and prios periods and to make estimaics about demographic and fisncinl varinbles that will inflpence the cost of
thi: benefin.
The sctuarial valuation s been camied o by Actuarial & kanagensest Consultanis (Pt} 1ad
The following key sssumpticns were made in amiving the above figure.

Martality - A& 196770 hdariality Tahle

Disubility : 10% al Martality

Saall Turmoser Bates @ 5.0% seross the board ap te ape 49 and thereafier zern.

Mioamanl Betirement Age ; 60 venrs (The employes who are aged over the specified reliremenl age bave bom assamed

o retire o their respective next hirthdmy)

Salary Cxcalation Rates : Bassc Salary @ 1.00% p.a. lecrcmenl ane duc 0 Jamuary cvery year

Reetiring Gromaity Farmula - Half momih's Salary for ench completed year of service for those with at kst 5 yemns service,

NOTE 14 DEFERRED LIABILITY FOR CRANT ASSETS

Balance & al 0130 January - 135,733
Income Deferred during the Year 422,823

Tranaferred Asscts Grant firom ICTA

Transferred to Income Statement (184 563) {233.713)

Balance as at 3 15t December TIR, 258 -




LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 315T DECEMBER 2019
{ALL FIGURES ARE IN SRI LANKAN RUPEES)

MOTE 15

2019
OTHER PAYABLES

14.1

16.2

Creditors -
Other "ayables & Accrued Expenses 1,449 7312

2018

1,449,732

DISCI TRES
Details of significant related party disclosures are as follows:

Related Party
ICT Agency of &ri Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

Relationship
Parent company

Nature of Transaction

Balance as at 01st January 43,249 879
Expenses borne by the company -
Amount received [rom the related party 751,406

34,963,450

8,280,429

Balance as at 315t December 44,001,286

43,249,579

Transactions with key management personnel of the company.

According to LKAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures', Key Management personnel are those having

authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.

Key Management Personnel Compensation
Short-Term Employee Benefits -

18

o
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LANKA GOVERNMENT INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT ST DECEMBER 2019
(ALL FIGURES ARE IM SRI LANEAN RUPEES)

NOTE 18 EVENTS QCCURING AFFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has been no material event occurred after the reporting date that require
adjustments to or disclosure of the fimancial statements.

NOTE 19 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

191  Commitments
There was no capital expendilure or linancial commitment outstanding at the

reporting date,

19.2 Conlingencies
There was no significant contingent liability as at reporting date.

Financial Statemenits 2019
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